PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

{CIN: U72200MH2006PLLC205023)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

{All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No, As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
ASSETS
| |Non-current assets
(ay Property, Plant and Equipment 5 6.313 5.73
{b) Intangible assets 5 14.61 29.22
{c) Right of use assets 6 B.14 12.79
tdy Financial assets
{i} Other financial assets 7 6.78 6.40
Total Non - current assets 35.86 54.14
il |Current assets
(a} Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables [ 5.10 57.40
{if) Cash and cash equivalents L] 7.29 15.85
(i#i) Bank balances other than (ii} above 10 3.25 7.34
(iv) Other financial assets 1 203.06 mn
by Other current assets 12 346.13 246.20
Total Current assets 564.83 549,00
Total sssets §i+1)) - 600.69 603,14
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
| |Equity
{a) Equity share capitat 13 {a) 57.67 57.41
(b} Instruments in the nature of equity 13 {by 1,839.08 1,839.08
{c) Other equity 14 (1.724.04) {1.432.85)
Total equity 172.71 463.64
LIABILITIES
It |Nan-current labilities
{a) Financial fiabitities
{1} Lease liabilities 6 4.64 10.26
(b) Provisions 15 18.25 12.89
Total Non - Current fiabilities 22.89 23,17
0 [Current labilities
{a) Financial liabitities
(1) Borrowings 16 35,00 -
{ii) Lease Uabilities 6 5.64 508
(iii} Trade payables 17
Toral outstanding dues of micro and smatl 0.14 0.08
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 198.04 3.5
than micro and small enterprises
{b) Prowisions 18 55.51 44,42
{c) Other purrent liabilities 19 11076/ 63.25
Total Currenit labilities 405.02‘ . 1633
Total Equity and Liabilities (tall+H1) B 600.69] 603.14)

Se¢ accompanywig notes to the consolidated financiat

slatements

1-51

The accampanying notes are an integral patt of the consetidated finaucial stalements.
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PayMate Indfa Limited (formerly known as PayMate Indfa Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Consotidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2023
{All mounts are INR. in Miitions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No.| Year ended March 3%, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
i Income
Revenue from operations 20 13,501.13 12,088.90
Other Income 7 14.83 ) 3.:
il Total income 13,515.96 12,092.21
N EXPENSES
Cost of services 22 13,389.61 12,074.79
Employee benefit expense i} 504.96 496,78
Finance costs 24 5.06 2.83
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 22.04 2467
Other expenses i 15952 72.51
Total Expenses (I} 14,073.19 12,669,58
IV Profit /{Loss) before exceptional items and tax (557.23) (577.37)
Exceptionat ftens - B
Praofit /(Loss) before tax
V Tax Expense 32
Current tax .
Deferred tax - .
Total income tax expense - -

VI Profit/{Loss} far the year (IV + V) (557.23) (577.37)
VIl Profit/(Lass) for the year (557.23) (577.37)
Vill Other comprehensive income/(loss) 1.76 {1.07)

(i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit ar toss

{a} Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabllities / (asset) 2.80 {0.69)
(b} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to . "
prafit or loss

{it) iems thai may be reclassified to profit or loss

{a) Fxchange differences on translation of financiat (1.05) {0.38)
statemnents of foreign operations

X Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year (Vil + ViIl) (555.47)] (578.44)

X Earnings/{loss) per equity share (Face value of Rs.1/- each): 3t

Basic 9.69) (10.65)
Dituted (9.69) (10.65}
See accompanying notes to the consotidated financial statements 1-51
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
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PayMate India Limited (formerly kriown as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH 2006RLC205023)
e, ltdared & t of Ch

in Equity for the year ended March 31,2023

fAll gmounts are INR. in Miftions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

{a) Share Capital

As ot March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Number of Jr—— Number of | A
shares shares |

(11 Equity share capital
(i) Equnty Shares of X 1/- each with voong eights (X 10/-
each for FY 20-21)
Opemng balance 5,74,08,690 57.41 34,758 _ 0.35
Aad: issue of shares 460,082 0.26 12,85,913 1.3t
Add: Sub division of shares | 3,34,521 -
Add! lssue of borws shares . . 5.57.53.500 55.75
Closing balance 57668782 |  57.67 | 5,74.08,690 57.41
(2) Praference share capital
{i) Preference Shares {Refer note 11(b)}
Opening balance 31,525 1.839.08 31,178 1,413.81
Add: fssue of shares = 407 423.27
Closing balance 31,585 1,839.08 31,585 1,839.08
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PayMate Indis Limfled (formerly knowh 83 PayMate India Private Limiled)

{CIN: U72200MH2066PLC205023)
Cansolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

{All ampunts are INE In Miilions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss for the year (557.23) (577.37)
Adjusyments for:

Depreciation and amortisation exponses 22.04 22,67
Finance costs 5.06 | 2.83
tnterest received (14.83) .32}
|Pravision for Gratuity 3.34 an
Provision for PLI 16.87 .
Allowance for doubiful trade receivables and bad debts written off . 7.69
Share Based payments to empleyees 163.43 243.84
Liabllities fo fonger required written back (1.33) {0.09}
637 Refund 6,86 -
Operasting loss before warking capltal changes (355.79) {300,54)
Chonges in working canital:

adjustments for fincrease] | decrease (n operating assets:

Trade receivabtes 52,30 (49.35)
Other financial assets 13.47 (275.31
Other non-financial assels (94.39) (21.97)
Adjustments for increacs ! {decrease) In operating liabilitles: -

Other financial Labilities . -
Provisions 12.88 36,23
Trade payables 194 .51 {1.33)
Qther non- financial liabitines 47.5¢ 24.03
Cash used in operations (129.51) 1588.25)
Net income tax (paid) / refunded (5.54} {52.80)
Het cash flow used In operating ectiviies (A) 1135.05) (641.05) |
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on praperty plant and equipment, including capital {3.37) 301
advances

{Investments)/Proceeds from bank deposits . 0.59
interest received 5.39 2.36
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B} 2.01 5.96
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Short term borrawings 35,00 .
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (5.05) (3.24)
Repayment of interest on lease liabflites (1.36) 1.88)
fssue of Shive Capitat 99.59 £27.46
Finance costs paid 13.70) 0.97)
Net cash flow from / {used in) financing activities (C) 124.48 e 620,79
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {8.56) (14.30)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents aL the beginning of the year 15,85 30.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yesr 729 15.85
Cash and cash cquivatents as per Batance Sheet (Refer note 7) 1.2% 15,85

™

See accompanying notes to the d financial stat t:

15t

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the consolidoted financial stat

As per vir report of eveo date
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PayMate inddia Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)
{CIN; UT2200MH2006PLE205023)
Notes forming part of the C idated Financial $ {or the year ended March 39, 2023

1.

Genaral information

The lidated f Val ts comprise fi of PayMate Indfa Limited (formerly known as PayMats India Private Limited) {the
Company/ Parent Company) and its subsidiaries caltactively, the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2023. PayMate lodia Limited (the "Company) Is a
public limited company domiclled in india and was incorparated on May 12, 2006 under the pr of the Companies Act, 1956 agplicable Tn India. Its
ragistered and principal office of business s located at No. 111, 18t Floor, ‘A" Wing, Simdervilla §,V.Road, Santacruz (West) Mumnbal Maharashira 400054 indis.
The Company is pnmarily engaged in the busi of providing compe sive cigital workflow tied & payments which enable greater control and
transparency along wilh better cash flows and an end to end reconcitiation for a superior experience for Enterprise and SME in closed-loop sipply chalns.

Significant Aceounting Poflcies
Significant accounting policies adopied by the group are as under:

2.0t Basks of Preparation of C tidated Financial

{aj Statement of Complisnce with ind AS

These Consolidated financial stat have brren prepared tn accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) natified under Section 133 of
the Companics Act, 2013 {the "Act™} read with the Companies (Indian A g Standards) Rules, 2015 and Comy {indian Ace g Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied (o all the years presented unless otherwise stated,
{bl  Banis of measurement
The W dated 1 ts have been prepared on & historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the follawing materiat items
that have been measured at fair value or revatved value as required by relevant Ind AS:-
i) Certain financial dssels and Uabilites meastred at fair valug {refer accaunting poticy on financial fnstruments)
#i} Share based payment transactions
fil] Embedded derivative
fv) Asset tlassified as held for sate

The graup has prepared the lidated financiat on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going eondern.

{¢) Clasification between Current and Non-current
The group presents assets and Uabitines in the balance sheet based on cusrent/ non-current classification. An asset is Ueited 85 Current when it is:
1, Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
i Held prmacily for the purpose of trading
Wi, Expected to be realised within twetlve months after the rcwﬂn; period, or
iv. Cash or cash eguivalent unless § from being exch d or used ta settle a Hability for at {east twelwe months aftet the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Uability f» current when:

1. it is expected to be settied in normal operating cycle

it. 1t s hetd primarily for the purpose of ading

il 1t §5 due to be setilad within twetve months after the reporting period, of

. There 15 nbd ynconditionat right to defer the settiement of the liabitity for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the lisbility that could, at the option of Uwe counterparty, result in its settiement by the issue of equity instruments do ot affect Jis
classifivation.

The group clasaifics sl other lisbilities a5 nen-current.

Deferred tax assats and Uabiities are classified as non-current assets and liabitities.

The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets foe p ing and their realisation in cith and cash equavalents. The grouwjs has
identified twelve months a1 its operating cycle.

di Useef esdrnm
The p of idated fi ial in conf y with Ind AS requires the M i to meke estimate and ptions that
affect m teported amount of asscls and Habilitles as at the Bolmcc Sheet date, reported t of and exp for the year and
disclosures of contingent lisbilitles as at the Balance Sheet date, The estimates and assumptions tsed in the decompanying consatidated financial
statements ara basad upon the Man 's pval of the relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Actual results cwld differ (rom these estimates.

Estimates and underiping dssumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis, R to azcounting esti if any, are recognized in the year In which
the estimates are revised and in any futire years affected.

Refer Mote 3 1 for detailed AiSCUSFION on estimates and judgments




PayMate india Limited {formerty hknown as PayMate india Private Limited)
{CIN; UT2200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes forming part of the C i d Financiat § for the year ended March 31, 2023
2.02 8asis of comsolidation
The lid financiat st comprise the fmancial statements of the group and {ts subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023,
Controd is achieved when the Growp is expaied, o hn n;ms. & variable returns from its fnvol b with the stee and has the ability 18 affect
those returns through its power over the i Specifically, the Grolp an #f and only #f the Group has:
- Power over the investee {1.e. exlstmgnghumluivclldnmenubmtitymdnﬂdw. ivities of the i 1]
- Exposure, or nghts, to ble retumns from its invel wath the # , and

2.03

« The abitity to usa fis power over the inveitee to affect its returns
Generally, there 13 a presumpbion that a majonty of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a
majority of the voling or simiar rights of an & , the Group ders atl rel facts and circ €5 In {ng whether 12 has power over
n investee, including:
- The contraciual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
- Rights anising from other contractual asranpements
- The Group‘s voting nghis and potential votmng rights
+ The size of the group's iolding of voting nghts relative W the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Groug 1e-asscs36s whether of not It controls an # fucts and cir indicate that there are changes (o eng or more of the three
{ements of control, Consolidation of » subsidh ,bemmwhmﬂw&umebuhsmudmmubﬂdaqawuamwmndlesrwplosexconuol
of the subsichary. Assets, Liabil income and exp of a subsidiary d or disposed of during the year ara included in the consolidated
fmmdauumnenufrmu:dnu&gcrwpimmud until ﬂzed-hﬂu&uwmtmumwm subsidinry.

4 are prepared using, policies for like lons and other events in similar circumstances. H a
mnhdﬂu&wwsamﬁmwﬁﬁﬂmﬂunﬂmwdhw lidated fi fal for lke b £ mdevemsln
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group ber’s financial st Is #n preparing the eomsolidated financi
statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s sccounting policies,

The financial st of all entities used Tor the purpose of consolidabion are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent group, 1.6,

year ended on 31 March. When the end ol the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsichary, the subsidwry prepares, for
tidation purposes, additiona! f) f lon as of the same date as the financia! stataments of the parant to enable the parent 1o
tidate the financial i ion of the subsichary, unless it i impracteable to do <.

The group combines the hinancial statemants of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assels, Habilitics, equity,
income ahd expanses. Intergroup transactions, halances and unrealised gains on transactions b group e are eliminsted. Unrealised
fesses are also alimnated unless the transaction providas evidence of an impairment of the ferred asset. ing policies of subsidiarics have
been charged where Y to ensuee ¢ y wilh the pol dopted by the group.

Subslciaries consldered in the Consolidated Financial Sta
Payiate Payment Services Provider LLC

PayMate Inc

PayMate FINTECH {PVT) LTD

PayMate RNDIA SPC

fraysate FTELYD

Paymate Fintech Company

PayMate Payment Services Sdn. Bhd,

Bunomo

Property, plant and squipment ’
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreclation. Freehotd land s carried at historicel cost. Historicsal cost includes
expenditure thai is directly tabie ta the acq of the ftems.

bspquent. cotts are included in the Bstet’s carrying amount or recognized as & separate Asuet, aS appropriste, onty when it is probable that future
d with the Item will flow o the group and the cost of the item can be measred reliably. The carrying smount of any

component. sccounted for as a sep: asset is d grized when replaced. All ather repain and maintenance are charged 10 Statement of Profit
and Loss during the year in wiuch they are incurred.
kdvances paid towards the acquisition of property, ptant and equi t oittstanding at each bal sheet date 15 classified as capital ads

under other non-current assets and the cost of assets nok pul to use before such date are disclosed under "Capital work-in-progress’.

Tearsition to Ind AS
On Eransition to Ind A5, the group has elected Lo continue with the carfying value of ol of fLs property, pant and equipment recognized as al 1 Al
2021 measared as per the Inchan GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, ptant and equipment,

Depreclation methods, estimated useful tives

The gIoujr depreciatey property, plant and eguipment ow thed eiumated el lives using the straight tine method The estimated welut Tives of
assels are as follows

Froperty, Ehnt_nnd equip;aem—' Useful Life -
teaselwdd mprovement® Lease perf

Compuler k Softwate 35 Years

Office Ecun pursenit 5 Years

Forpiture & Fittings 10 Years

* Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease petiod, which correspomds with the useful lives of the asses.

Based on the technical expeérts assessment of wseful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are bong depreciated ower useful lives
different from the prescribed useful tives under Sctiedule # to the Comp Act, 2013, Manag believes that such estimeted useful lives e
featistic and refiect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The rasidual values are not more than 5X of the
original cost of the asset.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction
from property plant and equipment is provded up to the date preceding the date of sale, dedoction 2s the caze may be. Gaing and losses on disposals
are devsriinad by comparing proceeds with carrying smount. These are inctuded In Statemeht of Profit and Loss bnder 'Other income’.

Depreciation methads, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financiat year end and adjusted prospectively, as
appropriate.




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)
{CIN: U72200MHZ006FLCR05023)
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2,04

(L

tb)

9]

2,05

2.06
{w)

(o}

intangible Assets

Intangitle assets are stated at acquisition coxt, net of dated amor

Patents, copyrights and ather rights

Separately acquired patents and copynights are shown at historical cost. They have a finite useful bfe and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumidated amaortication and impatrment losses,

Research and development

Research o and lop penih that do not meet the enteria as stated below are recog B5 @5 EXp as d.
Comprter software Application

Costs withh mai g sof! prog are recognised as an exp ¥5 incurred.

Devetopment Cost that are directly sttributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software prodls are recoguised &s intangible
assets where cretria mentioned in point (b} sbeve are met. Directly atiributable costs that are capitalised as part of the toftware include employee
costs wnd an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. .

Capitalizad develop £Os1s are ded as Intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the atsel 15 available for wse.

Traraition to Ind AS
On transition 1o Ind AS, the group has electad to continue with the carrying value of alt of its intangible assets recognised as at t April 2021 measured
as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value @ the decmed cost of the intangible assets.

The group amortized intangible assets over their estimated useful Uves using the straight line method The extimated usful lves of Sntangible assets
afe a5 Tollows:

Imangible Useful life
Patants S Years
Application 5 Years ~ -

inlangible assets with finite lives are assessed for impairment whenever there fs an Indicalion that (he inlanglble asel may be impatted. The
amoi tization period and the amartization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are rewewed At least at eath financial year end.

Intangible assats with indefinite wseful tves are not amortised. Such inlangitle assets are tested for ymp t lly, ither individually or at

the cash-generating unit level, The assessment of indefinite ife is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life conlinues to be
supportable. If nol, the change in usaful fife from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) of when o Jutwe ic beoefits are exp d
trom its use or disposal. Anw gain or loss arising Lpon derecopnition of the asset {calcutated as the difference b the net disposal pi ds and
the carrying smeunt of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. whirn the assel s derecognised,

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent Lisbilities for goods and services provided o the group prioy to the end of the financial year which are ungaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 deys of recogaitien/ as per agreed terms. Teade and other payables are presented as current Habilities
unless payment. 15 not duic within 12 months after the reporting petiod.

Forsign Currency Transsctiohe

Funational and p =17 ¥

ltems anciuded tn the didated financial stat ts are measured wsing the y of the primary econothic environment in which the entity
operites {'the functional currency'). The consolidated fi it are p d i Indisti rupee (INR), which (s the group's functionat and
preseatstion eurrency.

Transections and belantes

On Initiat recognition, all forefgn currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency smount the exchange 7ate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction, Galns/Lasses arising out of Tluctuation fn foreigh exchange rate between
the transaction date and setticment date are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

MonelLary assets and liabdlities denominated in forelgn currencies are translated 8t the functional curiency spot reles of exchange at the reporting
date and the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Noi-monetary items that are measured in Leems of historical €ost in 8 forcign currency sie translated wsing the exchange rates st the dates of the
initial Yansactions, K G ry fems d ut fair value in a foreign currency are transtated using the suchange rates al the date when U
far value is devermined. The gain or loss arising on trandation of non-monetary items measured at fait vatoe 1y tieated i line with the recognition of
the gain e lass on the chaoge in Tair value of the stem {L.e,, tanslation differences on items whose fair satue cain of foss 15 recogmsed in OCL o
profit or lons are alsa recognised in DCEor prohit or Loss, respectively).
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PayMate India Limited (farmerly hnown as PayMate India Private Limited)
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Notes forming part of the C fidated Financial $ for the year ended March 31, 2023

e) Group companies
The results and Tinancial position of foreign operations fnone of which has the axrency of 3 hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency diffevent from the pr tati y are lated into the pr currency as follovs:
« assets and liabitiues are transiated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet
» income and gxpenses are transiated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a ible app ion of the Aative effect of the rates
prevaiiing o the transaction dates, in wiich case income and expenses are transiated at the dates of the transactions), and
- A ] g €3 are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On consotidation, exchange ditferences arising from the transtation of any net stment in foreygn entities, and of borrowings and other financial
istruments designated as hedges of such investments, ase gnised in other cunpr income. When a foreign operation s sold, the
associnted exchange differences are reclassified to prolit of loss, as part of the gain or loss on sate,
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acqui of a foreign tion are treated as assets and labilities of the foreign aperation and
transiated at the closing rate.

1.07 Fair value messurement
The group measures financlal instruments, such as, derfvatives at fair value at each balatce sheet date.
Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset o paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The Tair value measwrement is based on the p ptiph that the te ion W vell the assét oF tansfer the Hability takes
place sither:
b In the principal masket for the asset or lability, or
> In the absence of 3 principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or liabllity accessible to the graup.
The principal of the most advaniageous market must be accessible by the group,
The fair value of an asset or » liabitity is 4 using the plions that market participants would use when peicing the asset or liability,
assuming thal masket participants act in their economic best intérest.
A fair value surement of a fi inl asset takes into sccount 2 market partcipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by uwing the asset
tn its highest and best use o by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The group uses valuation techniques that aré appropriate in the clroumitances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of retevant cbservable fnputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The group's management determines Lhe poticies
and procedures for (air valie messurement such ¢ derivative nstroment.
Al assets wnd Labitities Tor which fair vaiue 5 measured or disclosed fn the Afdated financiat i3 are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest bevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as & whole:
» Level 1 = Quoted (unadjustad) market prices In sctive markets for fdenticat assets or liabilites
b Lavel 2 — Valuation technsquees for which the lowest tevel ingant that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly o indirectly cbrarvable
» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value ment is unchservable

1.08 Revenie from contract with customer

~ {a) Sale of Services

Reverwe {3 moasured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a o net of i dergtion &.8. discouants, velume
rebates, any pay madé to s (mlesst‘hepaynmnlﬁfw;disﬁn:tgoodumﬂcerzmwdmmU\e:usmgr)umdexdudmmt

eollected on behall of third parties. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over 3 product or setvice 1o the custome:, Revenue Is
only recognisad o the extent that is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur,

Where the Company aCts as an agent lor seiling goods of services, only the income is included within ¢ The specific revenue
reognition enterial described below must also be' met before revenue is recognised. Tygically, the Company has 2 right %o paymenl before or st the
polnt Uhat services are delivered, Cash received before the services are delivered is rec 4 as cont Lability The amount of consideration
does not contain a significant financing P P terms are less than one year.

Service Fee from Merchants:

The Company earns senace fee from merchants and recognises such revenue when the control in services have been transferred by the Company f.e.
a5 and when setvices have been provided by the Company Such sorvice fee is generally determined az a perceniage of transaction value executed by
the merchants

The Company derives its tevenue primardy from the bansaction Fees and related serces and licensing mcoine The Lompany recognises revenue on
transacton Tees immediately upen completion of successful transaction and the collectability is reasonably assured
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Notes forming part of the C i F al § for the year ended March 31, 2023
(b1 Other Oparating Hevenus
fidnterest Income
Fox all debt tnstruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value ugh other preh ncome, income 1s recorded using

(€)

2,09

(a)

b)

1)

the effective interest rate {EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments o receipts ovet the expected life of the
financial instrument or ¥ shorter period, where sppropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset o to the amorbised cost of & financial
liabflity. When caleulating the effective lntrmst rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considarng alt the contractual teems of the
financial instrument (for i aall and similar options) but does aot consider the expected credit losses. Interest income
is included in other income in the summem of Profit and Loss.

{ii)Mviderd Income
Dividend income iy récorded when the right te receive payment is established.

Contract Balances

Contract assets

A contract asset i3 the nght to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the group perfarms by ransferring

goods or services o a ¢ before the pays ideration or before p udwa,acmtnctmtlsmmgmsedfuﬂmemd
that {5 conditional, A receivables rep the group's Tight to an amount of consid: thatis d

Conbiact Liability

A gontract tiabiiity is the oblig w fer goods or senvices 1o & customer for which the group has received consideration {or an amount of

considevation is due) from the Hac pays consideration before the group transfers goods of senaces to the rastomer, a contract

Hability is ghised when the payment is made or the payment ks due (whichever Is garlier]. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
group performs under the contract.

Trade Receivable

A rage receivable 1s recognised f an amount of tdararion that i ¢ 1 (i 2., only the passage of ume bs required before p of the
consideration is due).

Taxes

Yun eapense fin the year, comprising curient tax and deferred Lax, are included in the o {nation of the net proliL or loss for the year,

Currend inomtne Lax

Currpnt tax asiety and liabilitiey are meatured st the amaunt expectad to be racovered oF paid to the 1axation suthorities, The tay rates and 1ax
laws used 1o rompute the amount arc those that are d or subst ly d, st the year/period end date. Current tax assels and tax
{ishilitias ace offsel where the entity has a tegatly enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net baits, of (o realize the assat and
snttie the liability siml lansousty.

Deforred tax

Deferred Income tax is provided in full, using the bal sheet approach, on temporary differ artsiog b the tak bases of assets and
liabflities and their carrying In consolidated financial st Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from injtial
recognition of an axset of HabRity fn a thon other than a buh bination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit {Lax loss), Deferred income tax {s determined wsing tax rates {and laws) that have been d or aub jall ted by

lhnmloﬂheynrmdareexpectedmapplywtwnmer!uu»ddefemdhcmmmtkmum«undefmedmuxhabﬂltymetthd

Deforved tax assets are recognisad for all deductible tomporacy differences and unused tax losses only if it @ probable that futire taxable arounts
will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Management periodically eval positions taken in Iax refurms with respect o situations fn which applcable tay regulation is sbject to
interpretation. it establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid te the tax suthorities

Deferred tax sssets and Uabllities are offset when there I5 2 legally enforceabla right o offset current lax assets and labdlities and when the
deferred tax balances relate o the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and kax Habilities are offest whete the entity has a legally
enforczable right to offset and intends either t settie on & nel basls, or to reatise the asset and settle the Hability simultanecusly.

Current and deferred tax i racognfzed in Statement of Prafit and Loss, except to the extent that it ralates b items recognised in other
comprehennve income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehionsive inceaie or directly in equity, rospectively.

Mintimum Alarnative Tax
Mintmum Alterrative Tax (MAT'}) under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1951 {"the IT Act’) fs recognised a3 current tax in Hie statement of Rrofit
snd Lass. The credit availed under the IT Act i tespact of MAT paid 15 recognited as an asset only when and b the extent there is conivinging
evidenee that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried Torvard Tor set-oft against normal
tax frabulity. MAD croedit recogmsed as an asset §s reviewed at exch balante sheet date and waitten down Wb the extent the aloresand convncing
evidenie no longer exists.,

The Tasatewn Lass pamendment) Osd &, 2019 {*Ordi “} was p i on September 20, 019, The Otditan. ¢ has amended the Income
Tux Arf. 1561 and Finance Act, 2019 to inter-atia provide an option ta domestic companies to pay Income Lax at a reauted s of 22 percent plus
apphivabie simuhaige wid ceds with Certain combtions t be met, The Company hes epted to apply Ui provisiois of secuon 1950AA Mom Kl
Assessment yeas 2090-21 (year ended March 31, 2020) and sccordingly, the Company has charged off the batance of MAT credit dutng the year ended
March 31, 2020,
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Naotes forming part of the Consolidated Financla) for the year ended March 31, 2023
2.1 Leases
The group as a lessee

.12

The groop’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings taken to canduct its business in the ordinary couwrse. The group sssesses
whether o contract contains a lease, at Incaption of a contract. A contract {5, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the e
of an identified assel for a pertod of time in exchange for contideration, To assess whether & contract conveys the right ta control the use of an
Wentified asset, the group assesses whether:

i} the contract invoives the use of an identified asset

{11} the group has substantiatly all of the economic benefits from wse of the asset through the period of the lease and

{rfi) the group hax the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the iease, the group recognizes 3 right-of-use asset ("ROU”) and a comesponding lease Gability for all lease
arrangements 1n which it is a lessee, except for leases with 3 term of twelve months of (ess (short-term \eases) and low vatue (zases, For these stk
term and low value leases, the proup recognizes the lease pay 25 an op g exp ona pht-line basis over the ferm of the lease.

. Lease Labifities include the net p value of the g lease pay

- fined payments (including th-sub fived p ts). less any lease incentives recetvable

« vayiable (6ase payment that are based on sn index or a rata, infliaity measired using the index o rate a> at the commencement date
« amounts expected (o be payable by the group under resicual value guarantess

« the exercise price of 2 purchase option if the groug i3 resonably certaln 1o exercise that option, and

- payments of penatiies for terminating the lease, H the lease term reflects the group exercising that option

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the follovng.,

« the amount of the fnitial measurerent of lease tability

+ any lease payments made at o before the commencemant date less any tease Incentives raceived
» anv inttial direct costs

Righl-of-use assets are gererally depreciated over the shortes of the asset’s usefl life and the tesse term on & straight-line basts. I the group is
reasorably certain to axercisé a purchase option, the right-sf-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s usedul Life.

impatrment of non-financlat assets
The group assesses at each year end whethar there is any objective evidence thata nan financial asset of a group of non fimancial assets is impaired.
If nny such indication exists, the group estiinkles the asset’s recoverable amaunt and the amount of smpairment loss

An npairment toss ts caiculated 83 the difference between an asset's carrying amount and recoverable amaunt. Losses are recognized fn Statement
of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account, When the group considers Lhat there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the
relavant amounts are vritten off. if the of impal t logs s Aly decreases and the decreass can be related ohjectively 10 an event

acturring after the impel way grifsed, then the previousty ised fmpai t loss is d through Sust L of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an assel or cash-g: ting unit {as defined below] is the greater of its value #n use and fis fair vatue less costs to sell. In
sssessing velue n une, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax disceunt rate that refiscts current
market assessments of the time vatue of money and the risks speeific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment Resting, essets are grouped
meﬂmlnmmmhnmdmmtmmaﬂmﬂmlmmmnurgmﬁwlmmgdy{mndcntwuucuminmdm
assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™).

Provisions and contingent Bablkities
Pmmmmmnh:dvdmdnmhnprmnwﬁﬂmanresultonpauevmt,Itispvobableummmmufremmanwﬂg
Mhﬂnﬂuvﬂﬂhm«lbnﬂkd\cﬂﬂﬁmandﬂmisarelhbleesﬁmamo(ﬁ!mtdﬁle bligation. Pravisions are t d
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the pr bligation at the Bal sheet date,

If the efect of the time value of money (s material, provisions aré discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the lability. When di ting f5 wted, the i in the provision due to the passage of time fs recognized a5 finance cost.

The group rercrds 3 provision for iash ’,oms.Demnﬁ:ﬁmﬁngmtsmpwﬂdedntmepresemwunofmwmsutounlnﬂw
obl(gmonmn’efﬁmndmhnuwsmd:mruom:edupmnlHmetnsufﬂuparﬁmlvmenﬁeush[hmv-dmudaumntwe-
tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the dacommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount Is expensed s incurred and recagnized In the

statemont of profit and toss as a finance cost. The estimaled futwe costs of decomi are (e d lly and adjusted as appropri
Changes In the estimated future costs o in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

If the group tas B contract that is onerews, the present obligation uider the ¢o t iy gniscd and d xt 2 provision, However, before 3
separste provision 10r an OnéTous contract s blished, the group 1l any impal loss that has occurred on aswets dedicated ta that

contract.

Ah onEtoits conuach 5 2 conbacl under which the tnavoidsble costs {i.¢., the cacts that the grawy: £annor avoed because it has the contract} af
meeling the obligaliony under the contract ¢iceed the economic benehts expected to be received undet it The unavendable costs under & contract
reflact he least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and am compensation or penalties arising from
falxe to fullil it. The cost of fulfilling » contract gomprices the costs that relate diectly to the contiact (e both incremental costs and an
aliouation of costs directiy relaled W contract atlivities).

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 1s a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmad anly by the
GeEUNERCe or nonh occurrence of one of more unceriain Tuture evenls nat whally within the contrel of the group or a present obligation that aries
from past events wiigre it Is gither not probable tiat an outflow of ferouwces will be soquired to seutle or a relisble watimate of the amount cannot be
made.
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Cath and each equivalents
Cash and cash equivatents in the balance sheet comprise balance with banks, cash on hand, cheques/ draft on hand and short-term deposits net of
bank overdraft with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insighificant risk of changes in vatue,

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivatents include balance with banks, cash on hand, cheques/ draft on hand and short:
term deposiis net of bank overdraft.

Financial $nstruments
A financlal instrument s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a tinancial Habitity or equity Instrument of another
entity.

Financiai assets

Initial tion and

At tnitial recognition, financial asset 15 measured at its fair vatue plus, in the case of a financial agsel ot al Tail value thraugh profit o4 loss,
transaction cosix that are directly atiributable to the scquisition of the fi t asset. Ti ction costs of financal assets carred at fair value
thiough profit & boss are expensed in profit or loss,

Subseguent messurement.

for purpeses of swbsequent messurement, financial acsets are classified in following categaries:

a) at mmortized cost; of

b} at fair value through other comprehensive income; or

) at fair vadue thiough prolit ot toss,

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contrachual tzams of the cash fiows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for coliection of contractual cash flows where thase cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at smortized cost. interest income from these financial assets Is included kn Tinance income using the eflactive interest rate
methad {EIR).

Eair yatye throunh other comprehensive Income |Fvg§j], Assels that nre held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of pri | and . Are d »t Juie value through other comprehensive
income (FYOCI). Maverents in the carrying amount are taken ﬂrough oa except for the recognition of Impairment gains o losses, mtemtr:vonue
and foceign exchange gains and losses which are recagnized in Statement of Profit and Loss, When the financial asset t5 derecop d, the cumul

gain or losk previousty griized In OC! is reciassified from equity io Statement of Profit and Loss and necognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest
income from these financial assels is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Far valye through profit of loss {FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FYOL) are measured at fair value through profit o
{3, Interest income from these financial assets i included in other income,

Equity Hists ts: AL equity i in scope of tnd AS 109 are measured al Vair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
continpent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which ind AST0) applies are classified as at FYTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the proup may make an {rrevocable election o present fn other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
group makes such election on an instrument. by-instrument basis, The classification ks made on injtfal recognition and i irrevocable,

1f the groun decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOC), then all Tair value changes on the instrumnent, cactuding dividerids, are resognized
in thee OCL. There 1 no recycling of the amounts from OC1 16 PRL, even on sale of investment, However, Muu.pmyumdwlhnmhmnln
of bss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured AL fair value with atl changes recognized fn thie profit and loss.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Sta! for the year ended March 31, 2023
fiti)  Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) madel for ent and recog of

{iv}

&)
i

(i)

mpairment loss on inancial assets that are measured at amortized cost and FYOCI.

Foi recognition of impatrment loss on financial assets and risk expx the group that whether there has been 8 signsficant increese in
the credit risk since niliat recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL 15 used 1 provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has Increased sigmficantly, tifetime ECL fs used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the 1nsm.mcnt mproves such that there is no
tonger a siprificant increase in credit risk since initial recogition, then the entity reverts to i I loss ath ¢ based on 12
month ECL.

By

Life e ECL3 are the expected credit losses resulting from sl possible default events over the expectad tile of a fnancisi instrument. The 12 month
ECL i a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuits from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the diflerence between all contractual cash flows that are due 1o the group In accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
enhty expects to receive {i.e. all shortfalls), dicounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entily Is required to consider all
contractual ferms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expecied life of the financial fnstrument. However, in
tare cases when the expected Ufe of the financlal fastrument canoot be estimated reliably, then the entity 15 required to wse the remaining
o I term of the financial 3

In gonesal, it s presumed that credit risk has sipnificantly incraased since initial recognition if the paymest ts more than 3 days past due,

ECt, impairment loss all for g during the year ts recognized as fncor in the of profit and loss, In
balance sheet ECL for financial assets menured at amoctized cost is presented as an allowance, f.e. a3 an integral part of the measurement of those
assets 10 the balance sheel, The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the aset meets write ofl critena, the groun does not reduce
impawment altowance from the gross carrying amount,

Derecagnition of financial assets

A financial aseed is daracognized only when

ai the rights ta receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b} retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the Tinancial asset, but assumes a conuactual oldigation 1o pay the cash flows ta one of
mora rectpients.

Wiere the financial asset is tamsferred then In that casc financial asset s & gnized ooly if substantially all rsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial psset is Uransferred. Where the entity has not transferred substantiatly alt risks and ds of ownesship of the tinancial assct, the finandial
asset is not derecognized.

Financla liabitives

Initial recognition and measuremeant

Financial Usbitities are classified, at inftial recognition, as financial tiabilities at fair value through profit or {oss and at amortized cost, as
Al financia) abilities arc recognized inftistly at falr value and, In the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

Subsequenl measuremnent
The ¢ of financiat labilities d=pends on thetr classification, as described below:

Fingnclal tobifities at fair value through profit or loss

Finnncial Uabiliies at Tair value through profit or loss include financial linbilities hoid for trading and financial Uabilities detignatad upon initial
recognition 33 at fak value theough profit or lost. Separated embedded derivatives are slso classified as held for tading unless they are designated as
effective hedging fnst uments. Gatns or losses on Uabllities held for trading are recognized In the Statemerit af Profit and bost.

Borrmyings

After inftizt recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognfzed in Statement of Pmﬂt and Lm when the Uabilities are derecognized a5 well as through the BIF: amorbzation process. Amortized eost
is cafculated by taking inte t any o t or p on acquisition and foes o costs that are an futegral part of Uw EIR. The EIR
amortization f5 Included as finance costs i the Statément of Profit and Loss.

Borowing Gosts Borrowing costs directly atinbutable to the scquisition, constrction or production of an asset that necessanly Lakes a subrslanlial
penod of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as past of the cost of the asset. Alt other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they vcas, Borrowing costs consist of intetest and other costs that an entity fncurs in connection with the barrowing of funds,
Borrowing cost also includes exchinge diffe to the extent regarded as an ad) t ta the borrowing costs.
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(i} Derecognition 4
Af { liabulity ts & gnized when the oblig under the liabitity is discharged or cancefled or expires. When an exisbing financial Liability 15
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification & d as the derecognition of the original tiability and the recognition of ¥ new Uabllity. The difference in the

pattive carrying 3 gnized in the § of Profit and Loss as finance costs.

{c} Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is 2 comp of a hybrid (combined) Instrument that atso inciudes  non-danvative host contract » with the effect that
some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way umilar to a standalone derivative. Derivan b d tn ail other host contract

(L]

2,15

2.6
)

ib}
U]

1)

ate separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely refated to the economic charactenstics arid risks
of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss, Embedded derivatives closely refatod to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs (f there is either b change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash fiows that would otherwise be
tequired or a rectassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

Atteakiing Fi clal ir

Fnunml assets and lnnbﬂiues are offset and the net amount 15 reported in the balance sheet wheve theta is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recoghized amounts ahd there i an intention ko settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the Hatdlity simultancously. The Legatly
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforccable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insatvency or bankruptzy of the group or the counterparty.

Convertible preference shares
Convertitde pref shares are separated into liability and eqinty componesnts based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible preference shares, the fair value ot the liability portion of an op y convertible preference shares is determined
using & market inkacest rate for an equivalent non-canvertibie bonds. Ths amount is recorded as a biability on an amer tised cost basis untit

e:itmguished on or red ,“ of the bonds. The:emmdnofu\epmceedslummbtemthemlvpmmo!mewww
fnstrument siace it meats Ind AS 32, Fi d 4 jon, criteria for fixed to fixed dlassification. Tranucuoncwlsimﬁcdxtcd
Trom equity, net of associated income tax. The:myingnmmto{me jon option 15 not subsequently £

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity comp of the Thible prefi ' shares based on the allocation of
proceeds te the Uabllity snd equity components when the inst 15 are initiatly recognized

Empicyee Benefit

Short-term obligations

Uabllities for wages and salaries, includ o y benefits that are expectad to be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the year
mmmwmmmmmunmmmmtwmﬂ arvices up to the end of the year and are meagured at
the amounts expected to be pald when the tiabilities are settied, The Uabilities are p a5 qurTent employee benefit oblig in the balance

Other ong-tarm empleyes benefit obligat

Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contritation towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the group has no jurther obligations: Such benefits
are classitied a5 Defined Contribution Schemes as the group does ok carry any (urther obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly
basis which aré chargad to the Statement of Prafit and Loss,

Emplayee’s State insurance Scheme: Contribiution towards employees state Insrsnce scheme is made to the regulatory authorities, where the group
has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified o5 Defined Contribution Schemes a5 the group does not carty any further sbligations, spart
from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged o the Statement of Frofit and Luss.

Defined benefit plans

Geatuty; The group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the Gmmy Plan'}cmring eligible employees (8 uootdan:e wlth the Plymentof
Gratuity Act, 1972, The Gratuity Pan provides a lump sum p vested yoes ot reti , death, & tion of
Wﬂt.dmmth&dmhmm:ﬂnemphyee:nhw.ﬂw|mpsulbmlykxmuy ined (using the Proj Unit Credit

method) &t tha end of each year, Actiarial losses/galng are Fecognized in the nther comprehensive income in the vear in which they arise.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation o d §n INR is de 8 try o {he estimated futute cash outflows by reference
o marhet yields at the end of the reporting pedad on government bonds that have terms approlamating ta the tarms of the related obligation. The
estimated future papments which are denomiratod in a currency ather than INR, are discounted using market yields datermined by reference to high-
quality corporate bands that are denominated tn thie cutrency n which the benefits will be paid, and that bavee terms appraximating 1o the terms of
the related cbligation,

The uet inlerest tost is caloutated by applying the dhscount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit glligaton and the fair value of plan assets,
This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of rafit and toss,

Remeasurement gaine and Iosses arising from experience sdjustments and changes in actuarial assumiptions are 1ecugnied dn the peried in which
they ocewr, directly in ollier comprehensive Income. They are inctuded in retained ings in the st af changes tn equaty and in the batance
sheet.

Chm;es tn the plesent value of the dofined benetit obligati Aung from plan & o cigtalments are recogmsed inmedintety in prefit

ra 4 2k a datad tod ah

e which are expected 1o be avalled or encashed vathin 12 manths from the end of lhe
yuf.rtuelmdushontem J benefits. The obligat ards the same 15 measured st the expacted cost of accumulati
absences as the additional amount expccted to be paid as a resdt of the unused entilement as af the year end.

A dated A air

which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 manths from the end of the year end arc treated as
ather long term empbyee benefits. The group's liability is actuarialty determined (using the Projected Unit Credit methad} at the end of each year,
Achsrial lomses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and Loss i the year in which they arise.

Leaves under define benefit ptans can be hed only on di inuation of service by emoloyee,




PayMate india Limitad (formeriy known as PayMate India Private Limited)
(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes forming part of the G Financiai far tha year ended March 31, 2023
1) Sharm-based payments
Employees {inctuding senior executives) of the group receive remunesabion in the form of share-based theret i rendes services

217

2,18

.19

2.21

as consideration for equity instruments (equity-sektled transactions), The cost of equity-settled transactions Is determined by the fair value at the
date when the grant Is made using an apgropriste vnlmﬁmumdd

That cost is 3 with a g incresse in share-based paymeru (SBP) feserves in equity, over the period in which the
performance andfor service condnuons are Mfalhd in ,' yee benefits t isad for nquty—seuied transactions
alcad\repomnadammﬂlmvem:sgburmm-xmmw&mm"gpmodm xpired and the ¢ ' best of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimatety vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for 3 period represents the movement in
cumuiative exy T ised as at the baginming and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits sapense.

Nu expense is recognised for awards that do not Litimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have noL boen st
the awarde indude & market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested drrespoctive of whethed the market or non-vesting
[H d, provided that all other performance and/ot service conditions are satisfied,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is refiected as sdditional share dilution in the compuzation of dilited 2LAITINgs per share,

Contributed equity
Equty shares are clastified as equity share capital.
Incremental costs diectly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Provision for Dividend
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriataly authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the 1eporting peried but not distributed at the end of the reporting period, A comesponding amount is recognised direstly in equity.

Earnings Per Share
Basic eamings por share 15 calculated by dividing the nel prolit or toss attributable to equity holders of parent company (after deducung preference
dividends and altributable taxes) by the weighted sverage number of equity shares outstanding during the petiod.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitied W participate in dwidends relative to a fully
pald equity shate during the reporting peried. The weighted average nimber of equity shares outstanding during the petiod is adjusted for events
such as bonug fsue, bonue elemant in a rights iswe share split, and reverse share spiit (consolidation of sharat) that haw changed the number of
equity shares ding, without a corresp § change in 5

Foe the purpese of calculating dituted eamings per share, the ned profit or loss for the period attributable Lo equity thareholders of the parent
company and the waightad average number of shares outstanding duning the periad re adjisted for the effects of all dlutive potential eguity

shares

Segment Reporting

Dperating segments are reported fn a manner consistent with the internat reporting provided to the chiel operating decistion maker, The Board of
directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of maklng decisions about resoree: atlocation and
performance assessmant. Segment performance is evaluated based oh profit and s and fs measured consistently with profit and loss in the
Summary Statements.

The aperating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

f Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / atlocable to the segment including intes - s Exp
that sre directly id iable with / allocsble to segments are considered for o ining the segment resiit.

#. Expenses which relpte Lo the Group as 3 whole and not altocable to ts are included inder unallocable expendity

Hil. Income which relates te the Group s a whole and not aliocable to g 15 included in unatiocable income.,

i, Segment resuits includes smargins on inter-segment sales which are recuced in arriving at the profi betore tax of K group.

. & assets and lisbilies include Yiose ditectly identifiable with the ts. Unaticeable sssets and Uabilities represent the
as&etundlilb&htlesmuehutome&upulMdemdnoulbnblebwsemm.

i, Seg revenue g from jons with other busk ts is ac d on the basis of transfer price agreed between the
segments. mmmr«mm memmdetemvnedmvkldademedmamnormeedona newobiated business,

Rounding off amounts

Al 4 disclosed in tidated financial stat ts and netes have been rounded off to the neorest thousaids #s per requirement of Suliedule
1l of the Act; uniess otherwise stated.




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate india Private Limited)
(CIN: 72200MH 1006PLC205023)

Nutes formning part of the G tidated Fi | for the year ended March 31, 2023
3 Significant ace g judg . and pth
The preparation of ! fi 1al stat ts requires B to make fudg: i and ptions that sffect the seported smounts

1.1 Estimates and assumptions
The key assumpbions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year end dats, that have a significant risk of
<causing 3 material adjustment to the camrying amounts of assets and liabitities within the next financiol year, we described below. The group based
1ts p and onp available when the d financiat were prepaced. Existing circumstances and
M about future devet h ¥, may change due W market changes or circumstances ansing that are beyond the control of the
group. mwaremmwmwasmmmm

{8)  Share-based paymants

Estimaling (air value for share<based pay < tion of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on
the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires d tion of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the
expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assiamptions about them. The assumplions and models used for estimating
fair value for share-based tr; are discl n Note 33.

(b3 Taxes
Deferred tax -ssf.-u are recagnimd for unw.-d tax losses 10 the extent that it is probable that taxatie profit will be available agatnst which tha losses
can be utiliz i d; is required to determine the smount of deferred tax assets that can by recognized, based wpon

the likely hmmx and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies,

The group nevther have any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities avaflable that could partly support the recognition of
these losses as deferred tax assets. On this bacls, the group s determined that it cannot recognize deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried
forviard except of the unabsorbed depreciation. Refer Hote 32.

e} Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits and compensated absences)

The cost of the definad benefit plans sixch as g y and d ab ate determingd using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumiptions that may dm’e! from acunldeveluprmu n the futwre, These include the d of the di rate,
future salpry increases and mortatity rates, Due ta the compl {ewolved in the vat and its long-tevm m!ure a getined benefit obligation is

highly sensitive to o} in these p all fors are reviewsd al each year end,

The procipat axsumptions are the discount and satary gravah rate, The discount Fate Is based Lpolr the Patket yietds available on government bonds
at the accounting date with a term that matches that of labilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inft seniarity, pr and other
relevant factors on Yong term basis. For details refer Hote 28,

4.1 $tandards finciudi » ) Issued bt ot yet effective
The melrya! Corpuav.a Afairs (’MCA') has notified Companies {indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2021 dated March 31, 2023 1o amend
{1) Disclosne of Accounting Folicles - 1 Presentation of financial statemen

{i#l) Deferred Yan selated to Assers and tiabilizies arising from a Single Trancaction - Amendments ta Indt AS 12 Incore taxes
i¥) The other smendments Lo Ind AS norified by these rules sre primarily in the natute of clarifications.

4.2 Standarth that became effective during the year
The Ministry of Corporate Affaks has notified Companies (indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated Mareh 23, 2022 W amend the following

{1) Froperty, Plant snd Equip P ds Bafore | O Use- A i Lo ind AS 16
{8} ind A5 109 Financisl Inatruments - Fees in the 10 per cent” tesk for derecognition of financial tability
{ift) Taxation in farr value nis - Amendments to ind AS 41




PayMate India Limited {formerly known #3 PayMate india Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MHZ006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are INR. in Milljons, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

5 Property Plant and equipment and intangible assets

_ Property Plant and equip t Intangible assets

Bescription of Assets Co:\opnu:le':se:nd equcl’;:::nts .::rf’:::::s Total '::::: y Application Total

). Gross Carrying Yalue - B

Balance as at April 01, 2021 13.37 0.54 0.86 14.77 0.24 73.05 73,29
Additions 2.88 0.13 3.01 N - .
Disposals . - . = . - | =
Balance as at March 31, 2022 16.25 0.67 0.86 12.78 0,24 73.08 73.29
Balance as at April 01, 2022 16.25 0.67 0.86 17.78 0.24 73.05 73.29
Additions 3.34 0.03 3.37 -
Disposals o =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 19.5% 0.70 0.86 21,15 0,24 73.05 73.2%
. Acct d depreciation and impairment j
'Balance as at April 01, 2021 7.98 0.28 0.38 8.64 6.24 29.22 | 29.46
Depreciation / amortisation expense for the period 3.24 0.08 a.09 341 14,61 14.69
Disposals - - - . - - -
Balance as st March 31, 2022 11,22 0.36 0.47 12.05 0.24 43.83 44.07
Balance as st Aprll 01, 2022 11.22 0.36 0.47 12.08 0.24 43,83 44.07
Depreciation 7 amertisation expense for the period 2.63 0.08 0.06 2.78 . 14.61 14.61
Disposals

Balance as at March 31, 2023 13.85 0.44 0,53 14,83 0.24 58.44 58.68
Il. Net block (111}

Batance as at March 31, 2022 5.03 on 0.39 5,73 . 29,22 29.22
Batance as at March 31, 2023 5.74 0.26 033 6.33 - 14.61 14.61

oy

Property Plant and equipment and Intangible assets {continued)

The Company has not revalised its property, plant and eguipment (including right-of-use assets) during the current year and previous year.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Year ended Year ended
Farticfiars March 11,2023 | March 31, 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment .78 141
Right of Use Assets 4,65 4.65
Amortisation « Intangibles 14.61 14.61
Total 22,04 22.67

Title deeds of Iimmovable Properties not held in name of the Group:

promoter /director
Reasen fof nol being held tn the name of the Group

A

Description As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022

Title deeds held fn the name of PayMate india Limited

Whether title deed holder is a promoter, director or

relative of promoter /director of employee of HA




{CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
{All amounts are INR. in Millfons, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

4, Right of use assets and Lease Liabilities

The company has lease contracts for office units. The company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets, There are several lease

contracts that include extension and termination options.

The company has adopted Ind AS 116, efiective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2018 and applied the standard to its leases, under modified ratrospective transition

method,

The company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 “Leases” to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for
which the undertying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except

inflation adjustment.

{i) Movement in Right of use assets and Lease liabilitles is given below:

Description Right of use
assets
(Buildings)
Cost as at April 1, 2021 _ 31.35]}
Additions - -
Dispasals -
Cost 2z at March 31, 2022 31,39
Additions B
Dispotals .
Cost as at March 31, 2023 L 31,39
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021 - 13.95
ind AS 116 transition adjustment -
Depreciation for the year 4.65
Disposals B
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 S 18.60
Depreciation for the period 4.65
Disposals E
| Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023 23.25
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 12.79
Het carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 B 8.14

Lease Liability: Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movemeants during the period / year:

As at March 31,  As at March 31,

2023 2022
Opening balance 15.33 w17
Recognised on adoption of Ind AS 116 . .
Additions during the period / year . =
Disposal during the period / year - .
Accretion of interest 1.36 1.86
Payinent af lease liabitities {6.42) {5.70)
Closing balance 10,28 15.33
Lass: Current Lease Uabitities 5.64 5.05
Nen Current Lease fiabilities 4.64 10.28
{ii} Payments recognised as expenses and income
For the period / year ended

. - 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022

Short term teases and low value assets 0.39 0.28
0.39 0,28

fiii) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis

As at March 31, Asat March 31,

- 2023 22
Less than one year 6.42 €47
One te tive yoars 4.81 11.25
More than five years -

i1.23 7785
For detalls of Ind AS 116 disclosure refer Hote 2.1, —_—

T
/7 AMDLN
(£
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

India Private Limited)

{All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

7 Financial instruments at amortised cost

Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Security Deposits 6.47 5.02
Earmarked balances wilh banks - 0.38
in Deposit accounts with maturity for more 0.3 -
than 12 months
Total 6.78 6.40
Trade receivables (Unsecurad)
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Recelvable from contract with customer - bflfed 5.10 57.40
5.10 57.40
nsecured
"-Considered good 5.10 57.40
Allowance for bad and doubtfuf debts
Unsecured
-Considered good e )
Total Trade Receivables 5.10 57.40
Ageing of Trade Receivables :
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 1~ 2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years
{1) Undisputed Trade recetvables - considered good 1.37 (0.05) .78 - . 5.10
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - . - .
increase In credit risk
(if1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired . . - - - -
{iv) Disputed Trade Recefvables- considered good . . - - - .
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant . . - - -
increase in credit risk
Ivi) Disputed Trade Recewables - credit impaired - - - - - =
Total 1.37 (D.05) 3,78 - - 5.10
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars o Outstanding for following periods fram due date of payment
Lessthan 6 | & months - 1 1- 2 years 23 years More than 3 Total
manihs year yeurs
{1} Undispured Trade recelvables - considered good 47.92 0.18 9.30 - 57.40
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivablas - which have significant . - . - -
increase in credit risk
{1i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impalred . . - - . -
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- consites ed good C - . . -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant . - - - -
increase in crednt tisk .
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit unpaired B - ) | -
Total T 4792 098] 9.3 p— | - 57.40

6.1, Those are no trads or othet recewabte which are either due from directors or other of ficers of the company eithes severally o jointly with asy other
persoh Oor any trade o1 other receivable are due from firms o private companies respectively in which any direcior is a partaes. e ditector or 2 member,




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as Paymate India Private Limited)

{CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts are iNR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

9

10

1

12

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Cash on hand 0.00 Q.02
Foreign Currency in hand - 0.02
Balances with banks :
(i) In current. accounts 3.03 15.81
_{it) Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 4,25 -
Total 7.29 15.85

Fixed Deposit with Banks includes interest receivable of 2 0.99 Mn as at March 31 ,2023,
There are no repatriation restrictinns with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting

period and prior periods,
Other balances with banks
Particulars As at March As at March
3, 2023 31, 2022
Deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but 3.25 7.34
less than 12 months
Total 3.25 7.34
Shott-term bank deposits includes interest receivable of € 0.59 Mn as at March 31 , 2023,
Financial instruments at amortised cost {Current)
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Unsecured
“Considered good
Security deposits 199.88 199.11
Advance to Staff 1.34 i
Accrued Interest 0.29 .
Unbilled Revenue 1.55 19.87
Totaf 203,06 2.
Other current assets
Particulars As at March As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Unsecured
“-Considered good
Tax deducted 2t source 109.76 104.22
Prepaid expensas 3,14 1.15
Share fssue expenses (refer note 12.1) 165.12 B5.08
Balances with government authorities 63.32 54.46
Loans & Advances 3.02 1.29
Preliminary expenses AN -
Total I -7 X ) 246.20

Mote 12.1: During the year ended March 31st, 2023 the Company has incurred share issue expenses in connection with proposed public offer of equity shares
of which

Rs. 80,04 Ma is accounted for various services 1eceived (or Initial Public OF fering {IPQ). In accordance with the Compariies Act 2013 ("the Act") and also as pet
the Ofler

Agreement entered between the Company and the selling shareholders, the selling shareholders shall reimburse the share 1S540 expenses in proportion 1o the
respective

shares offered for sale. Accordingly, the Company will partly recover the expenses incurred in connection with the Issue on completion of Initial Pullic Gffer
(D). The
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(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to C lidated Financial St for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

13 Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 _As at March 31, 2022 .

Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares -

(3} Authorised:

(1) Equity Share Capitsi

Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- each 21,74,82,804.00 17.48 8.09.12 859 80.91

() Preference Share Capitat

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 114 144.06 114 144,06

Preference shares of Rs. 1,263,699.83 each

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 93 2812 293 281.24

Preference shares of Rs. 9,59,772,10 each

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 357 3.1 57 23,11

preference shares of 64,740 each

10% Non-Cumlative participating fully convertible 3,254 515.62 1,254 515.62

preference shares of € 1,58,456.7 each

10% Non-Cunwilative participating fully convertible 312 48,55 312 48,55

piefereace shares of ¥ 1,55,655.54 each

10% Non-Cumvative participating fully convertible 1,862 57.09 1,862 57.09

Prefesence Shares of ¥ 14,781.84 each

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertibte 1,862 56.75 3,802 56,75

Preference Shares of X 14,694,45 each

10% Non-Curmulative participating fully convertible 1,820 23.08 1,820 23.08

Preference Shares of ¥ 12,681.34 each

10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertible 1,820 23.01 1,820 23.01

Prefesence Shares of T 12,642.48 each

10% Non-Curutative participating fully convertible 2,042 5.9 2,042 25.99

Preference Shares of X 12,726.16 each

10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertible 2,042 25.87 2,042 15.87

Prefesence Shares of T 12,669.53 each

10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertibie 1,938 90.90 1,938 %0.90

Preference Shares of ¥ 46,905.46 each

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertibte 2,544 119.27 2,544 119.27

Preference Shares of T 46,863.44 each

10% Non-Ciimulative participating fully converiitite 1,513 70.97 1,513 70.97

Preference Shares of T 46,905.42 each

10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertible 909 54.58 909 51.58

Preference Shares of T 56,741,97 each

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 318 18.05 318 18.05

Preference Shares of ¥ 56,770.44 each

10% Non-Cumwdative participating fully convertible 1,817 122.06 1,817 122.06

Preference Shares of ¥ 67,176.16 each

10% Non-Cumwgtalive participating (ully convertible 1 . 1 -

Preference Shares of ¥ 71.72 each

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 2,768 141.91 2.768 141.91

Preference Shares of $ 51,264,37 each

[Total - | 21,75.14,390 | 2,056,57 | 8,09.44.445 | 1,919.99




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate india Private Limited)

{CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

(Al amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares |
fssued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up:
13 (3) Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of ¥ 1/- each 5,76,68,782 57.67 5,74,08,690 57.41
Total equity shares 5,76,68,782 57.67 | 5,74,08,690 57.41

13 [b) Preference Share Capital
10% Non-Cumitative participating fully convertibte 14 144,06 §14.00 144,06
Preference shares of ¥ 12,63,699.83 each

[each of the Series D4 preference shares shall be
converted to a maximum of 4,530 equity shares upon
conversion as per the conversion ratio based on the
commercial terms & conditions laid down in the
investment agreement 10 be converted on or before
05/03/2042)

10% Non-Cumidative participating fully convertible Pz 28121 pizl 81.21
Preference shares of ¥ 9,59,772,10 each

{each of the Series DI preferance shares shall be
converted to a maximum of 9,060 equity shares upon
conversion as per (he conversion ratio based on the
commercial terms & conditions laid down in the
Investment agreement to be converted on or before
2410872041)

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 57 231 357 3.1
preference shares of ¥ 64,740 each -

{to be converted on or before 06/09/2040 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
held)

10% Non-Cumudative participating fully convertible 3,254 515.62 3,254 315.62
reference shares of ¥ 1,58,456,7 each -

{to be converted on or bafore $3/08/2039 at 3 conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
held)

10% Non-Curmurative participating fully convertible M2 48.56 2 48.56
preference shares of % 1,55,655.54 each - (to be converted
on o before 22/04/2039 at a conversion ratio of 1,510
equity shares for each preference share held)

10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertible 1,529 78.38 1,529 78.38
preference shares of X 51,264, 37 each

{to be converted on or before 11/09/2037 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
hetd}

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 1,239 63,52 1,239 63.52
preference shares of ¥ 54,264.37 each

{to be converted on or before 11/09/2037 at a conversion
ratie of 3,510 equity shares for each preference share |
heldy |
104 Non-Cumutative pai ticipating fulty convertible 1,817 122.06 1,817 | 122.06
'p.' eference shares of % 67,376.16 each |

|12 be converted on or betore 14/09/2034 at a conversion
lratio of 1,510 equity shares for each prelerence shate
held)

10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible s 18.05 118 18.05
prelerence shares of 2 56,770.44 each

{to be converted on or before 27/02/2032 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equily shares for each preference share
held)

0% Mon-Cumutative participating fully convertible 909 51.58 509 51.58
preference shares of T 56,741.97 each

{to be converted on or before 27/02/2032 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
held)

10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertible 2,544 119.27 1,544 119,27
preference shares of X 46,905, 46 each

(to be converted on or before 25/05/2031 at a conversion

ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share - —

heta) , /{ A p/#\}.
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PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLEC205023)
Notes to C tidated Financial Stat

for the year ended March 31,2023

(Attamounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares — ]
10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 1,938 90.90 1,938 90.90
preference shares of X 46,905. 42 each
{to be converted an or before 25/05/2031 al a conversion
ratio of 1,54 equity shares for each preference share
held)
10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertible 1,513 70.97 1,513 70.97
preferefice shares of ¥ 46,883.44 each
({to be converted on or before 18/09/2029 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 eguity shares for each preference share
held)
10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 2,042 25.87 2,042 25,87
preference shares of T 12,669.53 each
(to be converted on or before 24/03/2028 at a conversion
ratlo of 1,516 equity shares for each preference share
held)
10% Non-Cumutative participating fully convertible 2,042 5.9 2,042 25.99
preference shares of T 12,726.16 each
{to be converted on or befare 24/03/2028 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
hetd)
10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 1,820 23.01 1,820 3.0
preference shares of € 12,642,486 cach
(to be converted on or before - 22/10/2027 a1 a conversion
1atio of 1,910 equity shares for each preference share
hald)
10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 1,820 23.08 1,820 23.08
preference shares of £ 12,681.34 each
{to be converted on or betore 22/10/2027 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
held)
10% Noa-Cumutative participating fully convertible 3,862 57.09 3,861 57.09
Preference shares of € 14,781.84 each
{to be converted on or before 15/11/2026 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
held)
10% Non-Cumulative participating fully convertible 3,862 56.75 3,862 56.75
Preference shares of ¥ 14,694.45 each
{to be converted on or before 15/13/2026 at a conversion
ratio of 1,510 equity shares for each preference share
held)
Total preference shares 31,585 1.839.08 31,585 1,839.08
Total —— - T 1,896.75 9649
(i} Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year : _— e
As at March 31, 2023 _ AsatMarch 31, 2022
Particulars Number of J—— Number of Aoont
. shares shares |

{1} Equity share capitat |
{i) Eauity Shaves of R 14+ each with voting rights (% 10/- [
each for FY 20-21) |
Dpening balance 5,74,08,690 57.41 34,756 0.35
Add: Issue of shares 2,60,092 0.26 12,85,913 A3
Addl: Sub division of shates 3,34,521
Add: Issue of bonus shares - - 5,57,53.500 55.75
Closing balance 5,76,68,782 52.67 5,74,08,690 57.41
{2} Preference share capical
{i) Preference Shares (Refer note 13(b))
Opening balance 31,585 1,839 31,178 1,413.81
Add: lssue of shares =) - 407 425.27
Closing balance 31,585 1,839.08 31,585 1,839.08




PayMate India Limited {formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Cor d Financial § for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts are INR. in Mitons, except for share data snd unless otherwise stated)

{if) Terms / rights attached to the Equity Shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1 per share {March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and March
31, 2019: Rs. 10 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The shareholders are entitied to
dividends in Indian Rupees, proposed by the Board of Directors and subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual
General Meetings. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, alter distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of

{iif} Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5X of the share capital;

Hame of the Sharehalder As at March 31, 2023 AS at March 31, 2022
Number of | X of holding | Kumber of % of holding
shares held shares held

Equity Shares

M. Ajay Adiseshan 1,36,29,200 57.27%|  3,30,99,200 57.66%

Mr.Probir Roy 63,25,221 10.97% 65,25,221 11.37%

Mr.Alexander Kuruvilla 32,60,090 5.65% 32,60,090 5.68%

Mr.Dhruv Singh 37,75,000 6.55% 37,75,000 6.58%

Mrs, Uma Vishvanathan 40,96,610 7.10% 40,956,630 7.14%

Preference Shares

M/s.Lightbox Ventures | 20,716 65.59% 20,716 65.59%

M75.1P0 Wealth Holdings Pty Lid. 2,768 8.76% 2,768 8.76%

M/s.Maylield FVCI Lid, 2,544 B.05% 2,544 8.05%

M7s.VISA infernational Service Association 2,229 7.06% 2,229 7.06%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders

regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial avnerships of shares,

(iv) shareholding of promoters

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number of |
shares held holding

% of (% of Change| Number of

shares held

Mr. Ajay Adiseshan ' 3,30,29,200 | 57.27%:

-0.38%] 3,30,99,200

57.66%

% of holding % of Change

-7.14%

Total

v) 1) For details of shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Plan {ESOP) of the Parent Company, refer Note 33,

#) Company has allotted 150 boaus shares for every one fully paid-up equity share with face value of T1 per Equity

fif) there are no shares bought back during the period of five years immediatety preceding the reporting date.




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLLC205023)

Hotes to Consolidated Financlal Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated}

14 Other equity

| . As at March 31, As at March 34,

| Particulars 2023 2022
Securities premium account 195 56 296,23
Retained earnings/{deficit) (2,644.74) [2,087.51)
Employees Stock eption autstanding 524.74 361.30
Share application money pending allotment 1.52 -
Other {tems of ather comprehensive income 0.62 {2.18)
Foreigin cuncency transiation reserve (1.74) ) {0.69)

| Total {1,724.04) {1,432,85)

Securities Premium account

Securities Premium account is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It fs utili

Companies Act, 2013,

Retained earnings are the profit/losses (net of appropriation) of the parent company earned till date,

income,

15 Provisions

sed in accordance with the provisions of the

including items of other comprehensive

As at March 31 As ar March 31,
Particulars 2023 ' 2022
(@) Prowasion for employee benefits
Provision for Grawity (Unfunded) {Refer note 28) B 18.25 12.89
Total 18,25 12,89
Movement In Provisions: Non Current Current
As ot March 31, AsatMarch 31, | AsatMarch31, | AsatMarch 39,
2023 2022 2023 2022
Opening 12.8% 9.40 N 223
Charged/ (Credited) to statement of profit and loss 5.36 52 (2.02) (0.31)
Amounts used during the year - (0.03) {0.054 1.49
Closing 18,25 12.89 1.34 .41
16 Short-term borrowings
: As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31,
Particulars 2023 2022
Unsecured, Loans from Related Parties
unsecured {oans from Directors (Refer Note 28) 35.00 -
Total 35.00 -
Unsecured Loan from Director's is interest free and repayable on demand .
< \ND,
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17

(ii) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settted on 60-day terms or as per agreed terms

{ifi) Other payables are non-intesest bearing and have an average term of six months or as per agreed terms

18

19

Trade payables {at amortised cost)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 02
Trade payables
-« Total outstanding dues of micio amnd small enterprises 0.14 0.08
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 198.04 3.53
Total 198,18 3.61

Trade payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023

Particulars o Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months - 1 1- 1 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

months yoar

(i) MSME 0.14 - - - - 0.14
(ii) Others 186.25 0.57 7.3 3.98 - 198.04
{iif) Disputed Dues - MSME - - » -
{iv) Disputed Dues - Others . . . . - -
{v) Unbilied dues . - f . R .
Total 186.40 0.57 7.23 3.98 - 198.18
Trade payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022
|Particulars . Qutstanding for following perfods from due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months - 1 1= 2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
- manths year
{i) MSME 0.08 - B B (.08
{ii) Others 0.00 0.15 3.38 3.53
{iii) Disputed Dues - MSME . . . -
{iv) Disputed Dues - Others . . B B
{v} Unbilled dues - - - - -
Total 0.08 - 0.15 3.38 - 3.61

Based on the information available with the Group, there are no outstanding dues and payments made to any supplier of goads and services
(i) beyond the specified period under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [MSMED Act). There is no interest payable or

paid to any suppliers under the said Act.

Provisions
As 5t March 31, | As at March 31,
Fagticila 2023 2022
Provision for Expenses S4.47 41.04
Provision for gratuity [Refer note 28] 1,34 341
L 55,51 44.42
Cther Current Liabllities
As at March 31 As at March 31
Particul; * 4
bl 2023 2022
Statutory remittances 14,06 54.07
Salary & PLJ payable 45,35 9.19
Advance from customers 51.25 .
Total 110.76 63,25
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Rotes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
(Al amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

20

21

22

23

24

Revenue from operations

as PayMate Indfa Private Limited)

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year anded

2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers
Transaction fees - local 13,442.42 12,070.04
Transaction fees - internationat 58.71 18.86
Total 13,501.13 12,088,90
Other income
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended
2023 Harch 31, 2022
Interest income from
- financial assets 0.44 0.14
- income tax retund 5.26 2,3
- ont lease deposit 0.45 0.71
Liabilities no longer required written back 1.33 0.09
Foreign exchange gain 0.49 -
Cther miscellaneous income 6.86 0.01
Total 14.83 | 3.31
Cost of services
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended
2023 March 31, 2022
Bank transaction fees ark payment gateway fees 13,389.61 12,074,.79
Discount on vouchers / mobile recharge top up - -
Total 13,389.61 12,074.79
Employee benefit expenses
Particutars Year ended March 31, | Year anded
2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 32726 742.02
Contributions to provident fund and other funds (Refer 7.59 521
Note 28)
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 28) 3.34 i
Employee stock option scheme compensation 163.43 243.84
(Refer Note 33)
Stafl welfare expenses 3,34 2,50
Total 504.96 496,78
Finance costs
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended
2023 March 31, 2022
fa] knterest expense on financial liabilities at amortised
cost:
{1) Lease liabilities 1.36 1.86
{b) Interest on delay payment of statutory dies 1.70 0.97
Total 5.06 2.83




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)
[CIN: U72200MH2006PL.C205023)

Notes to C

Y

d Financial §

for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

25

Other expenses
Particulars Year ended March 31, Year ended
2023 March 31, 2022
Lease rentals 325 0.21
Electricity expenses 0.39 0.32
Foreign exchange loss - 0.21
Insurance expenses 3.05 1.10
Repairs and maintenance (Others) 1.80 0.2
Rates and taxes 3 11,3%
tegal and professional fees 66.96 10.84
information technotogy expenses 31.18 74.80
Travelling and conveyance expenses 10,18 kX |
Audiz fees (Refer Note - 25.1) 5.83 3.67
Advertisement & Marketing Expenses 13.59 4,47
Canveyance charges 0.20 .
Office expenses 3.69 1.42
Telephone charges 1.94 1.80
Bank charges 0.51 0.40
Membership and registration 0.80 0.29
Provision for bad and doubtfut debts - 7.69
Miscellaneous expenses ) ) 083 ) 0.34
Total 15%.52 72.51
Payments to auditors: -
Particulars Year ended March 31, Yeasr ended
2023 March 31, 2022
Payments to auditors comprises {net of inpat tax
Statutory audit fees 5.83 1.67
For other services - -
Total 5.83 3.67




PayMate India Limited {formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)
(CIN: U72200MH2006PL.C205023)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

{All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

26 Contingent liabflities and commitments

27

Particutars AS at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
(i) Contingent Habflities:
{a) Bank guarantee given to various parties 0.50 0.38
¢y Income tax demand - 1.66
{d) Service tax demand * 3.19 1.19

(ii) Commitments:
{a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

!capitai account and not provided for

* Service tax demand is pertaining to the FY 2012-13 to 2017-18 and the dispute is pending before

CGST & CX, Mumbai West Commissionerate

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006

Particulars

As at March 31,

The amaounts remaining unpaid to micre and small supplies as at
end of the period / year

- Principal

- (nterest

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16|
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (27 of 2006}, atong with the amount of the payment made|
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year/period;

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay
in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year / period ; and

The ameount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the
puipose of disallowance a3 a deductible expenditure under
Section 23 of the MSMED Act.

2023

|
0.14

| N

As at March 31,
2022

0.08

Dues 1o micro and small enterpri;es have been determined to the extent sUcia- partiés have Beeu
identified on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the

avditors.
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PayMate india Limited (formerly known as PayMate Indla Private Limlted)

{CIN: U7ZZODMH2006PLC20’5013}

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

{All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

28
28.1

28.2

Employee benefit plans

- A i
The Company makes Provident Fund scheme contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying
employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required te contribute a specified percentage of the payroll
¢0s1s 10 fund the benefits. The Company recognised the following conteibutions in the Statement of profit
and loss.

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March|
31, 2023 | 31,2022

Provident fund 5] sn

fin 1il n - gratui
The Company provides for Gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratully Act. 1972,
Employees who are in continous service for a period of S vears are eligible for Gratuity, The amount of
Gratuity payable on retirement/ termination fs the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary muliiptied for the number of years of service or part thereof in excess of
six months, restricted to a sum of Rs, 20 lakhs.
The Group does not fund the liability.
This defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, Interest rate risk and
market (investment) risk,

The liability for the Defined Benefit Plan is provided on the basfs of a valuation, wsing the Frojectad Unjy
Credit Method, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an fndependent actuary,

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Cemponants of employer nse -
Cureent service cost 2,31 2,45
Past service cost . -
Interest cost 1.00 0.1y
Expected retum on plan assets - -
Recognised fn statement of profit and loss | 3.24
Re-measurement - actuarial {gainy/loss recognised in OCI 1 2.80) _0.&9
Tolal expense recognised in the Statement of total 0.50 3,93
compeehensive income
Other Conmiprehensive Income { OCH)
Actuarial (gatn)/loss due to DBO experience {8.37) 0.98
Actuarial (gain)/Less due to DBO financlal assumption changes {1.75) 0.13
Actuarfal (gain)/loss due to DBO demographic assumption changes {0.68) 0.02)
Actuartal {gain)/lass arising during period (2.8n) .69 |
Actuat retum on olan assets (greater)/less interest on plan assets . -
| Actuarial (zains)/ losses recognized in OCI <2.BT:‘ 0.69
Year ended March | Year anded March
31, 2023 31,2022 |
Defined Benefit Cost Bl
Service cost .31 2.45
Hat nterest on net defined benafit (sbRity £ (assel) 1.00 .79
Actuarial {gains)/ losses recognized in OC| (2.80) 0.69
Oefired Benelit Cost 0.50 393
Chanwe in defined benefit obliyatian (DBO) during the year
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year | 16,69 12.79
Current service cost i 745
Past service cost . :
intrrest cost 1.60 0.7y
Aztuarial (gams) / losses [2.60} 0.69 |
Benefits paid ) - 10.03)}

Present value of DBO at the end of the year 17.49 | 16,69 |




PayMate India Limited iformerly known as PayMate India Private Lim ed)

(CIN; I72200MH2006P1L.C205023)

Notes to € d Fi {al § for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amaunts are INR. tn Milifons, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

Year ended March| Year ended march
31, 2023 31,2022

Actuat contribution and benefit payments for year
Actual benefit payments 10.03)

Actual contributions - 0.03

ange in fair val during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the year - -
Expected retum on plan assets - B
Actual company contribuons - 0.03
Actuarial gain / {loss) -
Benetits paid - {0.03)
Plan assets at the end of the year - ~
Actunal return on plan assets . -

As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2023 2022
Current and Non Current Liabllity portion
Particulars
Current Liability 1.24 40
Non Current Asset/ (Liability) 480 | 11.98
Net Asset/(Liability) [ sex| 15.40
Het asset / (l1abllity) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 15.93 13.40
Fair vatue of plan assets
Funded status [Surplus / {Deficit)} 0593 {15.40)|
Net asset / (llability] recognised in the Balance Sheet — (15.93) 115.40)
C 14 3
Discount rate 1.30% 6.70%
Attrition Rate 9.00% 15.24%
Expected return on plan assets NA RA
Salary escatation 8.00% 10.00%

The discount rate & based on the prevalling market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance
Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations,

Sensitivity Anatysls
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date ta one of the ralevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the smounts shown below:

Gratutty Plan As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 _wn
Estimate value of obligation 1f discount rate higher by 1% (1.07) 10.74)
Estimated value of obligation if discount rate fs lowsr by 1% 121 0.8
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate fs higher by 1% 0.60, 0.44
Estimate vatue of obligation if salary growth rate is lower by 1% 0.71) {0.38)
Estimate value of obligation if attrition rate is higher by 1% 0.47, (6.01)
Estimate valuz of obligation ff sttrition rate is lower by 1% 10,20 0.01

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement n defined benefit gbligation In izolation and
assuming there are no other changes in marke! conditions at the accounting date. There have been no
changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity anatysts

Maturity profile of defined benefit chlication:

[Watarty profie, i it ensues | asatMarch 31, | As @ march 31
— — —— w23 | 2022 J
fwas e 1 vear 1.38 2.2% |
14 Yeat 1.56 | 0.70
23 Year 1.61 | 074
3-4 Year 1.61 0,79
4-5 Year 1.56 1.08
Above 5 years — 72| 5.09
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PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

{All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

29 Segment Reporting
The Company is a Payment Aggregator and its operations predominantly relate to
providing B2B payments and services. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
reviews the operations of the Company as one aperating segment. Hence no separate

segment information has been furnished herewith,

An analysis of the Company’s revenue is as follows:

a) Revenue From External Customers
Particutars Year ended Year ended March 31,
March 31, 2023 2022
India 13,442.42 12,070.04
Singapore 53.03 17.97
Rest of World 5.68 0.89
Total 13,501.13 12,088,.90
b) Non-Current assets {other than Financial Instruments)
Year ended Year ended March 31,
Rarticutars March 31, 2023 2022
India 28,74 47.65
Singapore . -
Rest of world 0.34 0.09
Total 29.08 47,74




PayMate India Limited {formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

30 Related party transactions

{a) Related Parties .

Name of related parties

Description of relationship

PayMate Payment Services Provider LLC
PayMate inc #

PayMate FINTECH (PVT) LTD
PayMate INDIA SPC

PayMate PTE LTD

PayMate Fintech Company

PayMate Payment Services Sdn. Bhd.
Dunomo

Bloom Ventures Private Limited
Ajay Adiseshan

$ Vishvanathan

Uma Vishvanathan

Wholly Cwned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Wholty Owned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Wholly CGwned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PayMate India Limited
Company Having Common Directors

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole Time Director & CFO

Relative of director

(b) Transaction during the year

Particulars Related Party Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
A} Directors Remuneration Ajay Adiseshan 20.40 33.60
S Vishvanathan 10.20 23.28
B) Salary Uma Vishvanathan 0.85 1.03
C} Loans Taken Ajay Adiseshan 35.00 41.20
S Vishvanathan - -
D) Loans Repaid Ajay Adiseshan - 41.20
S Vishvanathan )
S Vishvanathan : :
£) Advance from Customers Bloom Ventures Private Limited 35.00 5
F) Advance from Customers Repatd Bloom Ventures Private Limited 35.00 .
(c) Balance outstanding as at the balance sheet date
Particulars Related Party As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
A) Remuneration Payable Ajay Adiseshan 1.06 F
S Vishvanathan 0.61 -
B) Advance from Customers Bloom Ventures Private Limited - B
C} Short term borrowings Ajay Adiseshan 35.00 -
§ Vishvanathan - E
{d) Transactions within the Group:
Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Transactions by the Company with other
Group entities;
A) Loan given PayMate Payment Services 152.42 48.65
B) Interest income on loan given Provider LLC 9.96 4,91
Transactions by PayMate Payment
Services Provider LLC
A) Loan received PayMate India Limited 152.42 48.65
B) Interest Expense on loan taken PayMate India Limited 9.96 4.9
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PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

{e) Amounts due (to)/ from related parties:

As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022

In the Books of Parent Company:

PayMate Payment Services 235.32 82.90
A) Short term loans and advances Provider LLC

PayMate Inc (fully provided) 48,70 48.70
B) Accounts receivabtle PayMate Inc (fully provided) 6.40 6.40
D} Interest Receivable PayMate Payment Service 14,87 4.91

Provider LLC

PayMate Inc (fully provided) 0.04 0.04
E) Investments PayMate Payment Services 2.85 2.85

Provider LLC
in the books of PayMate Payment
Services Provider LLC
A) Short term loans PayMate India Limited (235.32) {82.90)
B) Interest Payable PayMate India Limited (14.87) 4N
C) Investments received PayMate India Limited (2.85) (2.85)
In the books of PayMate PayMate Inc
A) Short term borrowings PayMate India Limited {48.70) (48.70)
B) Accounts payable PayMate India Limited {6.40) {6.40)
C) Investments received PayMate India Limited (0.04) (0.04)

# PayMate, Inc. has filed an application dated July 12, 2021 with the Secretary of State,
for voluntary winding-up. As on the date March 31,2023, the application is pending with

Board

California Stock Corporation




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

{All amounts are INR. in Millions, except Jor share data and unless otherwise stated)

31 Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per share amounts is calculated by dividing the
number of equity shares outstanding during the period / year,
equity holders (after adjusting for dividend on the convertible
period / year plus the weighted average number of equity sha

profit/(toss) for the period / year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
Diluted earnings per share amounts is calculated by dividing the profit/{Loss) attributable to
preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
res that wauld be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potentiat equity shares into equity

shares.

Year ended March | Year ended March
i Particulars - 31, 2023 31, 2022
Earnings per equity share
Loss attributable to equity shareholders {557.23) (577.37)
Original number of equity shares (post share plit)* 3,80,708 3,58,973
Add: Impact of bonus Issue 5,71,06,182 5,38,46,022
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.) 5,74,86,890 5,42,04,995
Effect of dllutive equivalent share options 1,19,68,213 93,87,049
Effect of dilutive equivalent Compulsory convertible preference shares 5.02,49,780 4,87,14,247
Weighted average number of equity shares for dilutive EPS {Nos.) 11,97,04,883 11,23,06,291
Par value per equity share (%) 1.00 1.00
Earning/(loss) per share « Basic (¥) _ (5.69) (10.65)
Earning/(loss) per share - Diluted (%)# B {9.69) (10.65]

“The Company on December 18, 2021, has split the Rs. 10 equity share into 10 shares of Re, 1 each, Accordingly,
for subdivision of shares for the current and prévious years presented in accordance with the requirements of |
Earnings per share.

the earnings per share has been adfusted
ndian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 33 -

#The conversion of above mentioned potential equity shares would decrease loss per share from continuing ordinary activities, these are anti-difutive in
nature and thus the effects of anti-ditutive potential equity shares are not considered in cafculating diluted earning per share,

32 Income Tax :
Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars
Statement of c ?:::;‘i" Statement of - ?:::rmm
profit and loss - profit and loss P

, income income
iCurrent Tax . = . .
Deferred tax - - -
|Income tax expense - - - 3

As the company Js incurring Losses, the provision for Income tax does not arise.

Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and unused tax losses at the end of the year,
on such losses and unabsorbed depreciation, as the probable taxable

expire and also on consideration of prudence. The Company has not created deferred tax assets on the fallowing.

The net deferred tax asset has not been recognised
prafits for the entity are low before the unused tax losses or unabsorbed depreciation

As at March 31, | As at Mareh 31,

' Particulars - - 2023 2022
|Accumulaied unabsorbed depreciation loss 12415 107.66
jAccumulated unabsorbed business loss | 820.28 |  593.80

Total | 941.43 701.46
Unused tax losses which expire in financial years: [
2021-22 17.32
2022-23 . 5.66 5.66
202324 48.00 48.00
|2024-25 44.44 24.44
2025-26 49.12 43,12
|2026-27 71.50 71.50
2027-28 209.63 209.63
2028-29 148.14 148,14
2029-30 ) 243.80




PayMate India Limited {formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

(CIN; U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes te Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

(Alt amounts are INR. in Miltions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

33 Employee Stock Option plan
The stock compensation expense recognised for employee services received during the year ended March 31, 2023
and year ended March 31, 2022 were T 163.43 Million and T 243.84 Milkion respectively.

ESOP scheme 2014

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company at its meeting held on December 18, 2021, ratified the PayMate
Employees Stack Option Plan-1 2014 (“ESOP Plan”). At the said meeting, the Board authorised the Compensation
Committee for the superintendence of the ESOP Plan, ESOP is the primary arrangement under which shared plan
service incentives are provided to certain specified employees of the Company. Employees covered under Stock
Option Plans are granted an option to purchase shares of the Company at the respective exercise prices, subject
to requirements of vesting conditions. These optinns generatly vest in tranches ouer a perind of one to five yesrs
from the date of grant. Upon vesting, the employees can acquire one equity share for every option, The normal
Excise Period is 5 years from the date the options become vested options or such period as extended by the
Compensation committee.

The fair value of equity-settled award is estimated on the date of grant with the following assumptions;

Particufars ESOP Plan ESOP Plan ESOP Plan ESOP Plan ESOP Pian |

Grant Date 19-02-2022 19-02-2022 20-1-2022 24-14-201 24-11-2021
(Vest 2} (Vest 1) {Vest 2} {Vest 1)

Weighted average share price* (%) 103.35 105.35 105.35 5266 | 52,66
Exercise price (3) 1 1 1 1 | 1 s i}
Expected volatility (%) 38.63% 41.35% 18.79% _ 37.03% 39.36%
Expected tife of the aption (years) 4.74 3.74 3.65 4.5 35
Expected dividends (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 5.71% 5.37% 5.37% §.55% 5.18%
Welghted average fair value as on grant date® {¥) 104.59 104.53 $04.53 52.66 52.66

‘The aforementioned shares are post subdivision of equity shares {refer note 13).

A summary of the general terms of grants under stock option plan
Name of Plan Number of Number of
options options
reserved under | reserved under
the planasat | theplanasat

March 34, 2023 | March 31, 2022
PayMate Employees Stock Option Plan+l 2014° 2,41,60,000 2,41,60,000
“The aforementioned shares are post subdivision of equity shares (refer note 1),

The outstanding position as at each year end are summarised below:

Particulars Asat March 39, | As at March 31,
2023 2022

Outstanding at the beginning of the period /year 1,12,70,640 1,03,66,150
Granted during the period/year 9,22,610 41,82,700
Exercised during the perind/year - 31,30,230
Modification during the perfod!year . -
Expired during the period/year - -
Forfeited during the period/year - 1,47,980
Outstanding at the end of the period/ycar 1,21,93,250 1,12,70,640
Exercisable at the end of the period/year 1.07,42,140 64,22,030

*The aforementioned shares are post subdivision of equity shares frefer note 13).

The following table summarises information about outstanding stock options:

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,

2023 2022
Number of options” 1,21,93,250 1,12,70,640
Weighted average remaining life (months} 4 4

“The aforementioned shares are post subdivision of equity shares (refer note 13),
The fair value of the awards are estimated using the Black-Scholes Model for time and non-market performance-
based options,

The inputs to the modet include the share price at date of grant, exercise price, expected volatility, expected
dividends, expected term and tha risk free rate of interest.




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate india Private Limited)

{CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statement for the year ended March 31,2023

(All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for share data and unless otherwise stated)

34 Financial instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022 is as follows:

 Particulars Amortised cost
As at March | As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022
Financtal assets
Investment - -
Trade receivable 5.10 57.40
Cash and cash equivatents 7.29 15.85
Other bank balances 31,28 7.34
Loans - .
Other financial assets 209.84 228.61
_Total assets 225.48 309.20
Financial liabilities
Bor rowings 35.00 -
Lease liabilities 10.28 15.33
Trade payables 198.18 3.61
CE— __ Total fiabilities 243.46 18.94

The management assessed that falr value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities #s included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale,

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Lével 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either direclly (i.e. as prices) of Inditecily
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or Habilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable fnputs).

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Levet 3 during the year.

B. Financlal risk management
The Group activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains Lhe sources of risk which the entity I exposed to and how
the entity manages the risk,

Risk Exposure  Measuremen Management
Credit risk Trade Ageing analysis. Credit Monitoring the credit timits
receivables, score of customers/ of custemers and obtaining
security entities. security deposits
deposits,
Liquidity risk Borrowings  Cash flow forecasts Working capital
managed by finance team  management by Senior
under the overview of Management. The excess
Senior Management. liquidity is channetised

The Group’s risicmanagement is carried out by the Senior Management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors provides
guiding principles for overall risk management, os welt as policies covering specific areas such a5 credit risk and liguidity 1ish,

Risk management framework

The Group’s board of directors have overall responsibitity for the Group's risk management framework. The board of directors are sesponsible fot
developing and monitonng the Group's rish management policies. The board of directors monitors the compliance with the Group's risk management
palicles and procedines, and reviaws the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

The Group's risk management policies are 1o idently and analyze the risks faced by the Group, te set appropriate sk limits and controts and to monior
rishs and adherence to limits. Rish smanagement policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reftect changes it market condistions and the Group's
activities, The Group, though its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive controt
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.




Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial
Institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, Including cutstanding accounts recetvable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the
carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty tredit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Group assesses the
credit quality of the counterparties, taking fnto account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainty by the indiwdual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including
the default fsk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

The fallowing table gives details in respect of revenues generated from top customer and top 5 customers:

Year ended | Year ended
Particutars March 31, | March 31,
2023 2022
Revenue from top customer 1,504.02 2,276.30
Revenue from top 5 customers (other than above customer) 6,149.69 5,139.54

One customer accounted for more than 11% of the revenue for the year endad March 31, 2023. One customer accounted for mare than 19% of the
revenue for the year March 31, 2022,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 15 the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
detivering cash or another financial asset, The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient, tiquidity
o meet fts tabitities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable (psses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation.

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractuat maturities of significant Financiat liabilities.
As at March 31, 2023

Corrying  lessthan1  1-3years Morethan$s Total

value year years
Lease liabilities 10.28 5.64 4.64 - 10.28
Short-term borrowings 35.00 35.00 - - 35.00
Trade payables _ 198.18 186,97 11,21 - 198.19
Total 243.46 227,61 15.86 - 243,47

As at March 31, 2022

Carrying  Lessthan1  1-Sycars Morethan§ Torai

value year years
Lease (iabilities 15.33 505 10.28 B 15,13
Short-term borrowings . . - . »
Trade payabies 3.61 0.08 3.53 - 31.64
Total 18.94 5.14 13.81 - 18.94
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Foreign Currency risk

The Graup's exchange risk arises from its foreign aperations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in U.5. dollars). A significant portion of
the Group's revenues are in these foreign currencies, while a significant portion of fts costs are in Indian rupees, As a result, if the value of the Indian
Tupee appreciates relative 1o these fereign currencies, the Group's revenues measured in rupees may decrease, The exchange rate between the Indian
rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future. The Group's
management meets on a periodic basis to formutate the strategy for foreign currency risk management.

Consequently, the Group management believes that the payables in foreign cwrency and its assets in foreign currency shall mitigate the foreign
currency risk mutually to some extent

The following tabie presents foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as of March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022.

Particulars As at Amount in_[ INR (in MM)

Assets - Trade receivables

Siwar2s | 1260564 |

-Mar-72 | 8,288.83 |

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in INR against the USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible thange in foreign
exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their bansiation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates an decrease in profit or equity wheie the INR strengthens 5%
against the retevant currency, For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equily,
and the batances below would be positive.

|Particulars Year ended | Year ended
March 31, | March 31,
2023 2022
Impact on profit or ({loss) for the period ! yvear in case on 5% strengthening of INR {0.05) {0.03)
Impact on profit o (loss) for the peried J year in case on 5a weakening of INR 0.05 0.03
Capital management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as going concarn so that the Grou is able to provide minfmum return
o share holders and benefit for athier stakeholders; and malntain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group maintains its financial framework to support the pursuit of value growth for shareholders, which ensuring a secure financlal base. in order to
maintain or adjust the capital suucture, the Group may vary the distribution of dividends to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and total equity of the Group.,

The Group's management review the capftal structure of the Greup on quarterly basis. As part of the review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

Gearing Ratlo (Net Debt to Equity Ratio)

Particutars As at

As at March | As at March

31, 2023 31, 2022
Debt 35.00 -
Less: Cash B Bank Balances 7.29 15.85
Net Debt 7.71 (15.85)
{a) Share capital 1,896.75 1,896.49
(b} Other Equity (1.724.04)]  (1,432,85)
Total Equity 172.71 463.64 =
Net Debt to total equity ratio (without considering other Equity) $.46% -0,84% /;.‘-":‘“': S
Net Deb. Lo total equity 1atiu (Considering othet Equity) ) 16.04% aan| < \ND N
b
RN EY)



35 Revenue from contract with customers

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contract with customers:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,  March 31,
2023 2022
income from sate of services 13,501.13 12,088.90
S B 13,501.13  12,088.90
india 13,442.42 12,070.04
Outside India 58.71 18.86

13,501.13  12,088.90
Timing of revenwe recognition

Services transferced over time . .
Services transferred at a point of ime 13,501.13  12,088.%0
Total revenue from contracts with customers B 13,501.13 12,088.90

Reconclliation of revenue recognised with the cantracted price is as foliows:

Contract price 13,501.13 12,088.90

Less: Discounts and disallowances B R

Total revenue from contracts with customers 13,501.13  12,083.90

Contract balances

Particulars As at March  As at March
31, 2023 31, 2022

Trade receivables 510 57.40

The Group did nol have any long term contracts including derivative centracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Group does not
have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31 March 2023,




36 Additional information as required under Schedule (1l of the Companies Acl, 2013 of entities Standatone as subsidiaries;
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|A. Parent Company
|Paymate India Private Limited
8. Subsidiaries incorporate outside India
| Paymate Payment Services Provider LLC
PayMate Inc
PayMate FINTECH (PVT) LTD
PayMate INDIA SPC
PayMate PTE LTD
PayMate Fintech Company
PayMate Payment Services Sdn. Bhd.
Dunomo
C. Consolidation adjustments

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 34, 2022

Net Assets, f.e. total

Net Assets, i.e. total

As % of Amount A3 % of Amount
Standalone Standalone
net assets net assels
245.64% 429,42 115,98% 537.71

128.83%  (222.51)
-28.22% {48.74)

0.11% 0.19)
5.19% 8.97
12,56% {21.69)
-2.91% (5.03)
-0.59% {1.02)
-0.04% (0.06)
19.43% 33.56

1.28% 5.96
-10.51% {48.74)

-6.75% {31.29)

100.00% 172.74

100,00% 463,64

A. Parent Comparny

Paymate India Private Limited

B, Subsidiaries incorporate outside India
Paymate Payment Services Provider LLC
PayMate Inc

PayMate FINTECH (PVT) LTD

PayMate INDIA SPC

PayMate PTELTD

PayMate Fintech Company

PayMate Payment Services Sdn. Bhd.
Dunomo

C, Censolidation adjustments

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Share in profit/(loss) Share in profit/(loss)

As % of Amount As % of Amount
Standalone Standalone

profit profit

69.12%  (385.16)

24.04% (133.96}

0.00% *

0.03% 0.19)
<0.23% 1.27
3.97% (22.12)
1.04% (5.79)
0.18% {1.02)
0,01% {0.06)

1.83% (10.20)

93.07% (537.34)
7.75% (44.64)

-0.80% 4.61

100.00% (557.23)

100.00% (577.37)

Detalls of Benami Property held

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any

Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companles Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companles Act, 1956,
The Group does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Compa

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which s yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Wilfui Defaulter:

Non of the entities in the Group have been declared wilfut defaulter by any bank or financial fnstitution ar government or any government

Compliance with approved Schemets) of Arrangements:

The Group has not entered inte any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Corporate Social Respensibility ;

As per Section 135 of the Companies Ar1, 2013, a Group, mesling the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average niet profit Tor the
immediately preceding three financial years on carporate soctal responsibibity (CSR} activities. The criteria of forming thie CSR comnitice and spending

on CSR activity §s oot applicable to the Group. The Group has CSR policy in place.
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Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

43.1 PayMate India Ltd has loaned funds from pwied funds to PayMate Payment Services Provider LLC (Subsidiary of the Company). PayMate Payment Services

Provider LLC have advanced these funds to the subsidharies of PayMate India Ltd, Refer below.

Date of Transfer |PayMate PayMate PayMate PayMate PayMate Pte |PayMate Dunomo

Payment India SPC Fintech LLC [Paymant Limited Fintech (Pty) Ltd

Services Service Private

Provider LLC Provider Sdn Limited
05-May-22 - - . - - . N
01-Jun-22 1.05 - 1.05 - 1 - -
04-Jul-22 0.63 B - - 0.63 N
29-Ju-22 1.16 0.24 0.93 - - = 1 -
29-AL)-22 1.83 - 0.39 0.63 ©.82 . -
110022 = 028 0.24 0.05 - . - -
01-Nov-22 3.42 0.09 1.41 - 1.92 - N
30-Nov-22 B 3.58 0.29 0.59 LA I %7 0.14 0.04
27-Dec-22 - 7.83 0.04 0.02 - 7.7 0.05 -
29-Nec-22 333 0.05 0.05 0.37 2.83 = Q.02
O1-Fob-23 234 0.04 - 0.00 2.30 - -
27Feb-23 178 0.04 0.10 0.04 1.60 - =i
Totat 27.22 1.01 4.59 1.04 20.32 0.19 _0.06

43.2 The Company has not recelved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in

44
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writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{a) directly or indirectly tend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

Undisclosed income

The Group does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered of disclosed as income during
the year (previous year} in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Azt, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtuol Currency
The Group has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The Group has nol entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,

The Code on Soclal Security 2020

The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has recerved Presidential
astent on September 28, 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of india, Further, the Ministry of Labour and Empoyment has released draft
rules for the Code on November 13, 2020, However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for
quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.

‘The Compary will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes
effective and the related rules ta determine the financial impact are published. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes the impact of the
change will not be significant.

Compliarice with number of layers of companies
The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number
of Layers} Rules, 2017,

Events after the reporting period
o Significant Subsequent events have been observed which may require an adjustments to the financial statements,
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50 Ratios as per the Schedule il requirements

a) Current Ratio (Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities)

_ Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022 !
Current Assets () 564,83 549.00
Current Liabilities (B) 405.09 116,33
Ratio (C=A/B) 1.39 4.72
|% Change from previous period / year ~70%

Note on Variance;

The decrease in current ratio from March 31, 2022 to March 31, 2023 was primarily on account higher trade payable as of 31st March, 2023.

b) Dabt Equity ratio (Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings):

Partfcutars = Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022

Total debt (A) 35.00 .
Total equity (B) 172,71 463,64
Ratio (C=A/B) 0,20 -

% Change from previous period / year %

<) Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio { Net profit after tax divided by Total Equity)

| Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Het profit after tax (A) (557.23) (577.37)
Total equity (B} 172.71 463.64
Ratio (C=ASB) -322.64% -124.53%
% Change from previous period / year ~159% B
d) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sates divided by Closing trade receivables

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year erdled March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operations (A) 13,501.13 12,0868.90
Average Trade Receivables (B) 325 10.69
Ratio (C=A/B) 432.04 325.91
% Change from previous period / year 33%
Note on Variance:
The increase in Trade Recefvables tumover ratio from March 31, 2022 ta March 31, 2023 was primarily an account higher Revenue during the year 31st March,
2023,
e) Trade payables turnover ratio (Credit purchases divided by Average trade payables)

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Credit Purchases {A) 13,389.61 12,074.79
Average Trade Payables (B} 100.79 13.33
Ratio (C=A/B) 132.85 905.56
% Change from previous period 7 year -B5%

Note on Varlance:

The decrease in Trade Payables turnover ratio from March 31, 2022 te March 31, 2023 was primarily on account higher trade payable as of 31st March, 2023,

f) Net capital Turnover Ratio { Revenue divided by Net Working capijtal { current assets - current liabilities)
; Ll

A o Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 nl Year ended March 31,2022
Revenue from Operations (A) 13,501.13 12,088.90
Net Working Capital {B) 159.74 432.67
Ratio (C=A/B) 84.52 27.%4
% Change from previous period / year 203%

Note on Variance:

The increase in Trade Payables turnover ratio from March 31, 2022 to March 31, 2023 was primarily on account higher trade payable as of 315t March, 2023




PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

{CIN: U72200MH2006PLC205023)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts are INR. in Millions, except for shore data and unless otherwise stared)

5) Net profit ratio (Net profit after tax divided by Revenue)

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 __Year ended March 31, 2022
Net profit after tax (A) {555.47) {578.44)
Revenue from Operations (B) 13,501.13 12,088.90
[Ratic (C=A/B) -4.11% - -4.78%
[% Change from previous period / year 14% _
This ratio has improved from -4.78% in March 2022 o -4.13% In March 2023 mainly due to decrease in ESOP Cost during the year .
h) Return on Capital employed (Adjusted Earnings before interest and taxes Less other income divided by Canital Employed)

Particulars Year ercted March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
Profit before tax (A) (557.23) (57737
Add: Finance Costs (B) 5.06 2.83
EBIT (C) = (A)+(B) {552.17) (574.54)
tess: Other tncome (D) 14.83 wn
Adjusted EBIT (E) = ('C)-(D) (567.00) {577.76)
Total Equity (F) 17211 463.64
Return on Capital Employed (G=E/F) -328.30% -124.61%
% Change from previous period / year «163%
f) Return on fnvestment ___——

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022 |
et profit after tax (A} {555.47) {578.44)
Average Total Assets (B} £01.92 349.70
Ratio (C=A/B) -92.28% -75.36%
% Change from previous period / year ~22%

51 Previous years figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the current year classification {or] disclosures.

As per cur report of even date

For MS K A & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Mo.:105047W
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A shnan Govindan
Partner
Membership No: 205226

Place: Hyderabad
Date : September 08, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
PayMate India Limited

L
A%ay diseshan

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00099023

Nar&ﬁ:ﬂjarish
General Counsel, Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer {ACS: 15495)

Place; Mumbai
Date : September 08, 2023

%« Vol ot on. -

Yishvanathan Subramanfan
Whole Time Director and CFO
OIN: 02153545
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MSKA & Associates o Hanieera Ty Corporete

Telangana State, Hyderabad 500072, INDIA
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of PayMate India Limited (formerly known as PayMate India Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PayMate India Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2023, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended (“Ind AS™)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilted
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained and on consideration of audit reports of other auditors referred to in
paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s report but.does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report has not been made available to
us.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6238 0519
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of 4 foreign subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of INR 54.22 million as at March 31, 2023, totat revenues of
INR 5.68 million and net cash flows amounting to INR (7.86) million for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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All these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective
countries which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting
principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made
by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances
and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other
auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding
Company and audited by us. According to the information and explanations given to us by
the management of the Holding Company, these financial statements are not material to
the Group.

b. We did not audit the financial statements of 4 foreign subsidiaries, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of INR 0.00 million as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of INR
0.00 and net cash flows amounting to INR 0.00 million for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements are
unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material to
the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accountmg
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. AT
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, none of the directors of the Holding company are disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

iv.

(1) Under Rule 11(e)(i)

The Management of the Holding Company have represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or
any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) Under Rule 11(e)(ii)

The Management of the Holding Company have represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Under Rule 11(e)(iii)
Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management of the Holding
company in this regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{&31’ 8SON\
provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material mis- statement I\
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V. Under Rule 11(f)

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting

under this clause is not applicable.

Section 197 are not applicable.

which reporting under CAROQ is applicable.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W.

1

Ananthakrishnan Govindan
Partner

Membership No. 205226

UDIN: 23205226BGWEAZ8185

Place: Hyderabad
Date: September 08, 2023

In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company to its directors is in compliance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act
and the rules thereunder. Since the subsidiaries are incorporated outside India, the provisions of

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO report issued
by us for the Holding Company, we report that there are no qualification/adverse remarks.
There are no subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company to
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PAYMATE INDIA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS PAYMATE INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Ananthakrishnan Govindan NI A7
Partner

Membership No. 205226

UDIN: 23205226BGWEAZ8185

Place: Hyderabad
Date: September 08, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PAYMATE INDIA LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS PAYMATE INDIA
PRIVATE LIMITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of PayMate India Limited on the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls reference to
consolidated financial statements of PayMate India Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”).

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company, has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”). issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding company are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding company, based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designhed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Other Matter

Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, in respect of the adequacy of
the internal financial controls, is not applicable to all the subsidiaries as they are incorporated
outside India.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105042%7=C ==
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Ananthakrishnan Govindan
Partner

Membership No. 205226

UDIN: 23205226BGWEAZ8185
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Date: September 08, 2023
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